Planning Committee
Tuesday, 17th August 2021, 6.30 pm
Council Chamber, Town Hall, Chorley and YouTube
Call in (audio only) +44 20 3321 5257 Conference ID: 594 540 247#
Agenda
Please note that this is the reconvened meeting for the meeting on
Tuesday, 10 August which was adjourned due to unforeseen technical
difficulties that could not be resolved at that time. Item 3a was
considered and determined before the adjournment and therefore does
not need to be considered at this meeting. Item 3b was withdrawn in
advance of the meeting on 10 August and therefore this meeting will
recommence at item 3c.
Important Information Regarding Covid-19
In response to the current government guidance surrounding the COVID-19
pandemic, this meeting will be held with hybrid measures in place.
Committee members must take part in person at the COVID-secure Town Hall
if they wish to vote, in accordance with regulations.
Members of the public are kindly asked to watch the proceedings via a
YouTube livestream by clicking here.
Apologies
1

Minutes of meeting Tuesday, 13 July 2021 of Planning Committee

2

Declarations of Any Interests
Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any pecuniary interest
in respect of matters contained in this agenda.
If you have a pecuniary interest you must withdraw from the meeting. Normally
you should leave the room before the business starts to be discussed. You do,
however, have the same right to speak as a member of the public and may
remain in the room to enable you to exercise that right and then leave
immediately. In either case you must not seek to improperly influence a
decision on the matter.

Meeting contact Nina Neisser on 01257 515140 or email nina.neisser@chorley.gov.uk

3

Planning applications to be determined
The Director (Planning and Development) has submitted nine items for
planning applications to be determined (enclosed).
Plans to be considered will be displayed at the meeting or may be viewed in
advance by following the links to the current planning applications on our
website.
https://planning.chorley.gov.uk/onlineapplications/search.do?action=simple&searchType=Application
a

20/01053/FULMAJ - Land South Of Mercer Court And East Of
Westhoughton Road Adlington
This item was considered at the meeting on 10 August 2021.

b

21/00688/FUL - Whins Green Kitchen, Whins Lane, Wheelton,
Chorley
This item has been withdrawn from the agenda.

4

c

21/00261/FUL - Land adjacent to 69-70 Long Meadows

d

21/00461/OUT - Withnell Barn Farm, Chorley Road, Withnell,
Chorley, PR6 8ED

(Pages 33 - 56)

e

21/00601/CB3 - King Georges Field, Chorley Road, Adlington

(Pages 57 - 72)

f

21/00607/CB3 - King Georges Field, Chorley Road, Adlington

g

21/00737/FULHH - Ro-Mar, Church Fold, Coppull, Chorley,
PR7 4LZ

(Pages 73 102)
(Pages 103 118)

h

21/00281/FULHH - 12 Langton Close, Eccleston, Chorley,
PR7 5UU

(Pages 119 142)

i

21/00624/FULHH - 3 Tormore Close, Heapey, Chorley, PR6
9BP

(Pages 143 166)

Appeals report

(Pages 7 - 32)

(Pages 167 168)

Report of the Director of Planning and Development (enclosed).
5

Proposed Confirmation of Chorley Borough Council TPO 1
(Heapey) 2021

(Pages 169 178)

Report of the Director of Planning and Development (enclosed).
6

Addendum

7

Any urgent business previously agreed with the Chair

Gary Hall
Chief Executive

(Pages 179 182)

Electronic agendas sent to Members of the Planning Committee Councillor June Molyneaux
(Chair), Councillor Alex Hilton (Vice-Chair) and Councillors Aaron Beaver, Martin Boardman,
Magda Cullens, Gordon France, Peter Gabbott, Danny Gee, Tom Gray, Harold Heaton,
Keith Iddon, Alistair Morwood and Alan Whittaker.

If you need this information in a different format, such as larger print or
translation, please get in touch on 515151 or chorley.gov.uk
To view the procedure for public questions/ speaking click here and scroll to page 119

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 5

Agenda Item 3c

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00261/FUL
Validation Date: 5 March 2021
Ward: Chorley South West
Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Erection of 3no. dwellings (comprising of 1no. detached dwelling house and
1no. pair of semi-detached dwellings) with access to Long Meadows
Location: Land Adjacent 69-70 Long Meadows Chorley
Case Officer: Amy Aspinall

Applicant: Mr Hammond, Hammond Homes
Agent: Mr David Winstanley, Peter Dickinson Architects

Consultation expiry: 20 May 2021
Decision due by: 11 August 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

UPDATE
RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that planning permission is refused for the following reason:
1. The proposed development would result in the loss of existing protected open space
which makes a significant contribution to the character of the area in terms of visual
amenity. The proposed development is, therefore, contrary to policy HW2 of the Chorley
Local Plan 2012 – 2026.
Members will recall that this application was withdrawn from agenda for the Planning Committee
meeting on 13 July 2021 in order for the applicant to have the opportunity to address the
recommended reasons for refusal. A copy of the original report is provided below
Since this time the proposal has been amended as follows:





A landscaped zone has been added to the rear of plots 1 and 2 adjacent to the existing
footpath which links Longfield Manor / Lakeland Gardens
There has been a substitution of house type for plot 3 with a frontage to Long Meadows
The boundary fencing to plot 3 with has been set back to create a more open frontage
Separate vehicle access to plot 3 is now proposed with provision of 1no. parking space
to frontage

The report is updated as follows:
Existing open space
The application site is designated as existing open space under policy HW2 (Protection of
Existing Open Space, Sport and Recreational Facilities) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026.
The application site is comprised of two parcels of land designated under policy HW2 – land
adjacent to 70 Long Meadows and land adjacent to 24 Longfield Manor.

Agenda Page 6

Agenda Item 3c

Policy HW2 seeks to protect land currently or last used as open space unless alternative
provision is made under criterion a) or all of criteria b) to e) are satisfied as set out elsewhere in
the original committee report.
The National Planning Policy Framework defines open space as:
All open space of public value, including not just land, but also areas of water (such as rivers,
canals, lakes and reservoirs) which offer important opportunities for sport and recreation and can
act as a visual amenity.
The Council’s Open Space study (2019) defines amenity green space as:
Opportunities for informal activities close to home or work or enhancement of the appearance of
residential or other areas.
The applicant has provided further information in respect of the designation of the site as open
space.
It states that the site conditions and characteristics offer opportunities for unwanted activities,
anti-social behaviour, littering and dog fouling. The site characteristics are;
a. Overgrown vegetation,
b. Narrow spaces between residential areas (pinch points) which limit the potential for
recreational activities,
c. Relatively small site area – which limit the potential for walking, interspersed by land owned by
the Duchy of Lancaster – resulting in limited scope of improvement,
d. Not overlooked by neighbouring properties with many concealed areas making is suitable for
antisocial behaviour within the close proximity to existing dwellings.
e. Excessive litter and dog fouling.
The report further states the following:
That the site does not present a recreational use to the general public other than for purposes
detrimental to the amenity of neighbouring properties; and provides no recreational benefit to the
local area due to its physical characteristics and provision of large open spaces within the local
vicinity.
As a result of the attractiveness of the site for antisocial behaviour, littering and dog fouling it
cannot be considered to be a significantly positive contributor the character of the area. The site
is of little aesthetic or natural quality and is akin to scrub land more so than an area which
enhances the appearance of the general area. The open aspect link between Lakeland Gardens
and Longfield Manor shall be retained and enhanced with a formal landscaped buffer zone
created between the footpath and boundary to plots 1 and 2.
Open green areas are retained within the development site which through the proper
management and maintenance will enhance the visual quality of the site. These areas are; the
landscaped zone along the footpath between Longfield Manor and Lakeland Gardens, the area
of trees retained at the end of the turning head between Plot 3 and no. 70 Long Meadows, the
land under the ownership of the Duchy of Lancaster (to the rear of plot 3 and no. 8 – 11
Lakeland Gardens), and the garden spaces to the rear of the car parking for plot 2 and the northwest of the garage for plot 3. Whilst these areas may be smaller is size by virtue of their private
ownership and inclusion within the residential boundaries of the proposed dwellings they will be
maintained to a greater standard and will provide a significantly greater contribution to the visual
quality of the surrounding area.
Policy HW2 criteria e) states that the site should not make a significant contribution to the
character of the area. As identified above the low visual quality of the site and its attractiveness
for antisocial activities means that it cannot be classed as a significant contributor to the
character of the area. For this reason, along with enhancements to visual amenity as a result of
the proposed development, the application can only be determined to comply with criteria e).

Agenda Page 7

Agenda Item 3c

Officer comment:
In respect of criteria d) of policy HW2 it is considered that the applicant has demonstrated that
the retention of the site is not required to satisfy a recreational need in the local area.
In respect of criteria (e) the conclusions of the original report remain in that the site is protected
amenity greenspace which, by definition, enhances the appearance of residential or other areas.
It is recognised that the site does have areas which are overgrown, however, it is not considered
that the vegetated state of the site detracts from the area, as it does not necessarily have to be a
managed landscaped area.
At the time of officer site visit, the site was not in a littered state. Notwithstanding this, it is the
responsibility of the landowner to maintain the site in a tidy state.
The site provides green buffer between the residential development of Long Meadows and
Longfield Manor and Lakeland Gardens. It forms an open area to the head of Long Meadows
which adds character to the streetscene in terms of visual amenity.
It is considered that whilst the site is small, it does make a significant contribution to the
character of this built up area in terms of visual amenity.
The proposal is, therefore, contrary to policy HW2.
Impact on the character and appearance of the area
Following the receipt of amended plans, this section of the original committee report is updated
as follows:
It remains that the application site is designated as existing open space which makes a
contribution to the visual amenity of the area and is an attractive feature of Long Meadows and
the pedestrian link between Longfield Manor / Lakeland Gardens. The proposal would result in
the loss of this existing open space and would entail the development of the whole site for
residential purposes, albeit a landscape is now proposed to the rear of plots 1 and 2, adjacent to
the existing footpath which runs between Longfield manor and Lakeland Gardens.
The application proposes 3no. dwellings in total, with a shared access and driveway off Long
Meadows to serve all three properties, in addition to a separate dedicated access to plot 3. The
site is an irregular shape and the original scheme presented a layout where the proposed
dwellings faced into the site and the development turned its back onto Long Meadows. The type
of proposed boundary treatment to the rear of plots 1 and 2 and its position abutting the footpath
was also considered to be oppressive.
In order to attempt to overcome the design issues, the plans have been amended and the house
type on plot 3 has been substituted and would now front Long Meadows, providing a more
attractive and open frontage to the head of Long Meadows. The rear gardens of plots 1 and 2
have been reduced and the boundary fencing has been set further into the site in order to
incorporate a landscaped zone adjacent to the existing footpath. It is considered that this would
alleviate concerns in relation to the proposed development creating an oppressive environment
for users of the footpath.
The two storey height and general appearance of the proposed dwellings remains acceptable in
this location.
The key issue, however, remains that the application site is designated amenity green space
which is considered to make a significant contribution to the character of this built up area in
terms of visual amenity. The proposed development would result on the loss of this open space
which is considered to be harmful to the character and appearance of the area.

Agenda Page 8

Agenda Item 3c

Impact on neighbouring amenity
The assessment of amenity in respect of plots 1 and 2 remains as per the original report and
whilst the proposed gardens have been reduced in size to accommodate a landscaped zone,
they remain of an adequate size for future occupiers to carry out day-to-day domestic activities.
In respect of plot 3, the side facing elevation (east) proposes a first floor bedroom window.
However, the garden depth at this point is approximately 14 metres, and the elevation does not
directly face any other habitable windows. The garden depth is adequate to ensure that the
private amenity space of 70 Long Meadows is safeguarded from adverse impacts of overlooking
or loss of privacy.
Plot 3 has no first floor rear facing habitable windows and is in excess of 19 metres from the
properties of Lakeland Gardens.
In amenity terms, the proposed development would not adversely affect neighbouring residential
properties and would afford an acceptable standard of amenity for future occupiers. The
proposal accords with policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 in respect of amenity.
Impact on ecological interests
Policy BNE9 (Biodiversity and Nature Conservation) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026
stipulates that Biodiversity and Ecological Network resources will be protected, conserved,
restored and enhanced; and that priority will be given to, among other things, protecting,
safeguarding and enhancing habitats for European, nationally and locally important species.
The application is accompanied by and ecological appraisal which has been assessed by the
Council’s appointed ecologists at Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU). The ecological
appraisal has assessed the site for all likely protected species, such as bats, great crested newts
and badger; and no evidence of any such species was found. GMEU advise that they accept the
findings of the report and that no further information or measures are required.
As the development would result in the loss of trees and scrub, which is potential bird nesting
habitat, GMEU advise that a nesting bird condition should be attached to any permission and
that mitigation for loss of bird nesting habitat should also be provided through provision of bird
boxes on retained trees and the new build. This could also be secured by way of condition.
Having regard to the above, the proposal would not be detrimental to nature conservation
interests and would accord with policy BNE9 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026.
Highway safety
As the proposed scheme has been amended, LCC Highways have been re-consulted. An
update will be provided on the Addendum following receipt of final comments from GMEU
CONCLUSION
The proposed development would result in the loss of existing protected open space which
makes a significant contribution to the character of the area in terms of visual amenity. The
proposal is, therefore, contrary to policies HW2 and BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 –
2026 and it is, therefore, recommended that the application is refused.

ORIGINAL REPORT
RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that planning permission is refused for the following reasons:
1. The proposed development would result in the loss of existing protected open space
which makes a significant contribution to the character of the area in terms of visual amenity.

Agenda Page 9

Agenda Item 3c

The proposed development is, therefore, contrary to policy HW2 of the Chorley Local Plan
2012 – 2026.
2. The proposed development would be harmful to the streetscene and would result in an
oppressive environment to the existing footpath between Lakeland Gardens and Longfield
Manor. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 –
2026.
SITE DESCRIPTION
2. The application site is comprised of an irregular shaped parcel of land which sits between
Long Meadows and Longfield Manor / Lakeland Gardens. The site is vegetated and has a
footpath running through it, although this is not a formal public right of way. The site is
designated as existing open space under policy HW2 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026
and falls within the settlement boundary of Chorley, as defined by the Policies Map. The
surrounding land use is predominantly residential.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
3. The application seeks planning permission for the erection of 3no. dwellings, comprising of
1no. detached dwelling house and 1no. pair of semi-detached dwellings. This would include
vehicular access to Long Meadows with a shared driveway and parking to serve each property.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
4. There is no recent relevant planning history.
REPRESENTATIONS
5. 2no. representations have been received citing the following grounds of objection:
 No objections to the houses being built but concerns in relation to boundaries, levels of
the land and access to the houses.
 Changing the boundaries might mean that residents cannot access their driveway due to
the access.
 The land has been looked after and maintained over 20 years.
 There are issues in relation to boundary alignment and land ownership.
CONSULTATIONS
6. CIL Officers: Advise that this is a chargeable form of development.
7. Lancashire County Council Highway Services: Advise that the application is not acceptable.
8. United Utilities: Advise that the drainage scheme has not been based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and, therefore, request drainage
conditions to reflect this approach.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of development
9. The application site falls wholly within the settlement boundary of Chorley, as defined by the
Chorley Local Plan Policies Map.
10. Policy 1 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy (2012) seeks to focus growth and
investment in certain areas, including the key service centre of Chorley.
11. Policy V2 (Settlement Areas) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that within the
settlement areas excluded from the Green Belt, and identified on the Policies Map, there is a

Agenda Page 10

Agenda Item 3c

presumption in favour of appropriate sustainable development, subject to material planning
considerations and the other Policies and Proposals within this Plan.
12. The principle of the development is, therefore, acceptable subject to other considerations set
out in this report.
Existing open space
13. The application site is designated as existing open space under Chorley Local Plan policy
HW2 (Protection of Existing Open Space, Sport and Recreational Facilities). The application site
is comprised of two parcels of land designated under policy HW2 – land adjacent to 70 Long
Meadows and land adjacent to 24 Longfield Manor.
14. Policy HW2 seeks to protect land currently or last used as open space unless alternative
provision is made under criterion a) or all of criteria b) to e) are satisfied. The criteria is:
a. Alternative facilities of an equivalent or enhanced standard are provided nearby before the
existing facilities cease to be available; or
No alternatives have been put forward.
b) It can be demonstrated that the loss of the site would not lead to a deficit of provision in the
local area in terms of quantity and accessibility; and
There is currently a surplus of amenity greenspace in Chorley South West ward and the loss of
this site would not lead to a deficit in provision.
c) The site is not identified as being of high quality and/or high value in the Open Space Study;
and
The site has not been assessed as part of the Open Space study as it falls below the threshold
of 0.2 hectares and have less recreational value.
d) It can be demonstrated that retention of the site is not required to satisfy a recreational need
in the local area; and
At the time of the site visit, parts of the site were fenced off with construction style temporary
fencing, although the site was still accessible. It is not known how long the fencing has been in
place, although the application submission contains photos of the site without any fencing and
clearly shows a route through.
The mapping system identifies a footpath, and a route through the site from Long Meadows to
Longfield Manor / Lakeland Gardens is visible, although it is not formally laid out and is not a
public right of way. It is for the applicant to demonstrate that the site does not serve a
recreational need and it is not considered that this has been satisfactorily demonstrated.
e) The site does not make a significant contribution to the character of an area in terms of visual
amenity.
The application site functions as a green buffer between the residential development of Long
Meadows and Longfield Manor and Lakeland Gardens. It forms an open area to the head of
Long Meadows which adds character to the streetscene in terms of visual amenity. The site also
provides an open aspect to the pedestrian link which extends from Longfield Manor to Lakeland
Gardens which is enclosed on one side with boundary fencing, and the site contributes to
making it a more attractive route. It is considered that whilst the site is small, it does make a
significant contribution to the character of this built up area in terms of visual amenity.
15. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to policy HW2.

Agenda Page 11

Agenda Item 3c

Impact on the character and appearance of the area
16. Policy BNE1 (Design Criteria for New Development) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026
stipulates that planning permission will be granted for new development, including extensions,
conversions and free standing structures, provided the proposal does not have a significantly
detrimental impact on the surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot
ratio, height, scale and massing, design, orientation and use of materials; and that the layout,
design and landscaping of all elements of the proposal, including any internal roads, car parking,
footpaths and open spaces, are of a high quality and respect the character of the site and local
area.
17. The application site is designated as existing open space which makes a contribution to the
visual amenity of the area and is an attractive feature of Long Meadows and the pedestrian link
between Longfield Manor / Lakeland Gardens. The proposal would result in the loss of this
existing open space and would entail the development of the whole site for residential purposes.
18. The application proposes 3no. dwellings in total, with a shared access and driveway off Long
Meadows. The site is an irregular shape with the proposed dwellings facing into the site. Plot 3 is
a detached dwellinghouse and is situated to the head of Long Meadows in a prominent position.
Given the siting of the proposed dwellinghouse, it would have a side-facing orientation towards
the road, with the plan also showing a 1.8 metre high concreate post and timber panel fence
along the boundary. The development would be seen as turning its back to Long Meadows,
rather than integrating with its surroundings, and it is considered that the proposal would be
harmful to the streetscene.
19. Plots 2 and 3 would be set back from Long Meadows and situated between 19 Lakeland
Gardens and 24 Longfield Manor, but would be inward facing with the gardens backing on to the
existing footway which runs between Longfield manor and Lakeland Gardens. The plans show
that a 1.8 metre high concrete post and timber panel fence along the boundary with the footpath,
which would create an oppressive environment for users of this footpath.
20. Whilst the two storey height of the dwellings and their general appearance is considered to
be acceptable, for the reasons set out above, the proposed development is considered to be
contrary to policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 in respect of design.
Impact on neighbouring amenity
21. Policy BNE1 (Design Criteria for New Development) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026
stipulates that planning permission will be granted for new development, including extensions,
conversions and free standing structures, provided that, where relevant to the development the
proposal would not cause harm to any neighbouring property by virtue of overlooking,
overshadowing, or by creating an overbearing impact; and that the proposal would not cause an
unacceptable degree of noise disturbance to surrounding land uses.
22. Acceptable separation distances are achieved between the proposed dwellings and
neighbouring properties in accordance with the Council’s spacing standards, and no first floor
habitable windows are positioned in such a way that it would cause overlooking or loss of
privacy to neighbours.
23. Plot 2 would be sited behind the rear elevation of 19 Lakeland Gardens and would be two
storeys in height. The 45-degree guideline is a useful tool when assessing the impact of
proposals on neighbouring properties and enables a satisfactory relationship to be maintained.
The proposal would be within the 45-degree guideline when measured from the nearest ground
floor window.
24. Plot 1 would be set away from 24 Longfield Manor by approximately 8 metres and would not
breach the 45-degree guideline.
25. Adequate private amenity space would be provided for each plot so that future occupiers can
carry out day-to-day domestic activities.

Agenda Page 12

Agenda Item 3c

26. In amenity terms, the proposed development would not adversely affect neighbouring
residential properties and would afford an acceptable standard of amenity for future occupiers.
The proposal accords with policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 in respect of
amenity.
Highway safety
27. Policy BNE1 (Design Criteria for New Development) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026
stipulates that planning permission will be granted for new development, including extensions,
conversions and free standing structures, provided that the residual cumulative highways impact
of the development is not severe and it would not prejudice highway safety, pedestrian safety,
the free flow of traffic, and would not reduce the number of on-site parking spaces to below the
standards stated in Site Allocations Policy – Parking Standards, unless there are other material
considerations which justify the reduction.
28. The application proposes vehicular access to the site from Long Meadows, with a shared
driveway arrangement and dedicated parking for each plot. The plans show that each
dwellinghouse would be served with 2no. parking spaces with plot 3 also benefitting from a
detached garage.
29. Lancashire County Council Highways have assessed the application and have raised
concerns regarding the safe access and egress for the proposed parking spaces of plot 1 due to
the presence of an existing shed which partly falls within the application site and is shown on the
proposed plans. The applicant states that 24 Longfield Manor have encroached onto the land,
however, the occupier of this property disputes this. It should be noted that certificate A has
been signed as part of the application and, therefore, the applicant is stating that they own the
land. This matter is currently with the applicant to address and an update will be provided on the
addendum.
30. LCC Highways do not raise any objections in relation to other highways matters.
Impact on ecological interests
31. Policy BNE9 (Biodiversity and Nature Conservation) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026
stipulates that Biodiversity and Ecological Network resources will be protected, conserved,
restored and enhanced; and that priority will be given to, among other things, protecting,
safeguarding and enhancing habitats for European, nationally and locally important species.
32. An ecological appraisal has been submitted as part of the application and this is being
assessed by the Council’s appointed ecologists at Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU).
An update will be provided on the Addendum following receipt of final comments from GMEU.
Provision of public open space
33. Policy HS4 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 requires public open space contributions
for new dwellings to be provided in order to overcome the harm of developments being
implemented without facilities being provided.
34. Until recently the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) previously set out a threshold
for tariff-style contributions, stating that planning obligations should not be sought from
developments of 10 or less dwellings and which have a maximum combined floorspace of no
more than 1000 square metres. This guidance has been removed from the latest NPPG and has
been replaced with a requirement that planning obligations for affordable housing should only be
sought for residential developments that are major developments.
35. Specifically, the guidance was derived from the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13 May
2016, which gave legal effect to the policy set out in the Written Ministerial Statement of 28
November 2014 which has not been withdrawn and which should, therefore, clearly still be taken
into account as a material consideration in the assessment of planning applications.

Agenda Page 13

Agenda Item 3c

36. To this end whilst it would normally be inappropriate to require any affordable housing or
social infrastructure contributions on sites below the thresholds stated, local circumstances may
justify lower (or no) thresholds as an exception to the national policy. It would then be a matter
for the decision-maker to decide how much weight to give to lower thresholds justified by local
circumstances.
37. Consequently, the Council must determine what lower thresholds are appropriate based on
local circumstances as an exception to national policies and how much weight to give to the
benefit of requiring a payment for 10, or fewer, dwellings. The Council has agreed to only seek
contributions towards provision for children/young people on developments of 10 dwellings or
less.
38. Whilst there is currently a deficit of children/young people provision in Chorley South West in
relation to this standard, financial contributions for off-site provision can only be requested if
there is an identified scheme for new provision and none are identified at present.
39. Therefore, a financial contribution towards improvements cannot be required from this
development.
Sustainability
40. Policy 27 of the Core Strategy requires all new dwellings to be constructed to Level 4 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes or Level 6 if they are commenced from 1st January 2016. It also
requires sites of five or more dwellings to have either additional building fabric insulation
measures or reduce the carbon dioxide emissions of predicted energy use by at least 15%
through decentralised, renewable or low carbon energy sources. The 2015 Deregulation Bill
received Royal Assent on Thursday 26th March 2015, which effectively removes Code for
Sustainable Homes. The Bill does include transitional provisions which include:
41. “For the specific issue of energy performance, local planning authorities will continue to be
able to set and apply policies in their Local Plans which require compliance with energy
performance standards that exceed the energy requirements of Building Regulations until
commencement of amendments to the Planning and Energy Act 2008 in the Deregulation Bill
2015. This is expected to happen alongside the introduction of zero carbon homes policy in late
2016. The government has stated that, from then, the energy performance requirements in
Building Regulations will be set at a level equivalent to the (outgoing) Code for Sustainable
Homes Level 4. Until the amendment is commenced, we would expect local planning authorities
to take this statement of the government’s intention into account in applying existing policies and
not set conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4 equivalent.”
42. “Where there is an existing plan policy which references the Code for Sustainable Homes,
authorities may continue to apply a requirement for a water efficiency standard equivalent to the
new national technical standard, or in the case of energy a standard consistent with the policy
set out in the earlier paragraph in this statement, concerning energy performance.”
43. Given this change, instead of meeting the code level, the dwellings should achieve a
minimum dwelling emission rate of 19% above 2013 Building Regulations in accordance with the
above provisions. This could be controlled by a condition.
Drainage
44. United Utilities advise that the drainage proposal has not been based on the hierarchy of
drainage options in the National Planning Practice Guidance and, therefore, request drainage
conditions to reflect this approach. This could be conditioned accordingly to ensure that the
development is drained I the most sustainable way.
Community Infrastructure Levy
45. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for
development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging

Agenda Page 14

Agenda Item 3c

commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development would be a chargeable
development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s Charging
Schedule.
CONCLUSION
46. The proposed development would result in the loss of existing protected open space which
makes a significant contribution to the character of the area in terms of visual amenity. It would
also be harmful to the streetscene and would result in an oppressive environment to the existing
footpath between Lakeland Gardens and Longfield Manor. The proposal is, therefore, contrary to
policies HW2 and BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 and it is, therefore,
recommended that the application is refused.

RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE
LAK

17

ELA
ND

GA

12

27
18

RD

EN

S

Revision

Client

9

26

7

Project

69

LD
FIE
NG

RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT
LAND ADJACENT
69-70 LONG MEADOWS
CHORLEY

Drawing
LOCATION PLAN
Title
Drawing
3868-21-16
No.
Scale 1:1250 @ A4 Date

Drawn
By

DW

01 MAR 2021

Peter
Dickinson

R.I.B.A.

169 Appley Lane North
Appley Bridge
Wigan, Lancs
Tel. No. 01257 252203
Website www.peterdickinson.co.uk
E-mail
admin@peterdickinson.co.uk

Agenda Item 3c

S

59a
59b

OW

AD

LO

70

ME

MA

NG

1 to 4

Amendments

HAMMOND HOMES

CHARTERED
ARCHITECT

NO

24
LO

R

23

Date /
Initials

Agenda Page 15

96

This page is intentionally left blank

10th August 2021

Agenda Page 17 Agenda Item 3c

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item 3c
21/00261/FUL

Erection of 3no. dwellings (comprising of
1no. detached dwelling house and 1no. pair
of semi-detached dwellings) with access to
Long Meadows

Agenda Page 18 Agenda Item 3c

Land adjacent to 69-70 Long Meadows

Location plan

Agenda Page 19 Agenda Item 3c

Proposed site plan

Agenda Page 20 Agenda Item 3c

Landscaping plan

Agenda Page 21 Agenda Item 3c

Proposed plans – plots 1 and 2

Agenda Page 22 Agenda Item 3c

Proposed plans – plot 3

Agenda Page 23 Agenda Item 3c

Site photo

Agenda Page 24 Agenda Item 3c

Site photo

Agenda Page 25 Agenda Item 3c

Site photo

Agenda Page 26 Agenda Item 3c

Site photo - streetview

Agenda Page 27 Agenda Item 3c

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 29

C O M M I TTE E

Agenda Item 3c

R E PO R T

REPORT OF

MEETING

DATE

Director of Planning
and Development

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

ADDENDUM

ITEM 3c – 21/00261/FUL – Land Adjacent to 69 Long Meadows
The recommendation remains as per the original report
The report is updated as follows:
Further representation:
A further representation has been received from 24 Longfield Manor which is summarised
below:
The shed is within the boundary of 24 Longfield Manor and was constructed 14 years ago
The boundary fence was constructed prior to purchase of the property in 1990 and was
replaced 3 years ago after lasting 27 years.
The boundary fence has been solely maintained by the owner of 24 Longfield Manor
The site has not been maintained since Lakeland Gardens was completed 23 years ago.
Officer comment:
The planning application form declares that the application site, as edged in red, falls within
the ownership of the applicant. The land dispute is ultimately a civil matter.
Highway safety
During the course of the application, the scheme has been amended and re-consulted with
Lancashire County Council Highways.
In their response they raise concerns in relation to third party encroachment due to the
position of an existing fence and shed at 24 Longfield Manor which they consider has
implications for the safe access and egress of the proposed parking spaces of Plot 1.
The plans do, however, show that the shed would be cut-back and the boundary realigned in
order to accommodate the driveway. This would provide a width of 3241mm for the full
length of the proposed driveway which exceeds the standard width of a parking space. It
would, therefore, allow safe access and egress. It should be noted that LCC Highways do
not raise any concerns in relation to any other matters and, therefore, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in highways safety terms, having regard to Chorley Local Plan
policy BNE1 (d).

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 31

Agenda Item 3d

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00461/OUT
Validation Date: 14 April 2021
Ward: Chorley North East
Type of Application: Outline Planning

Proposal: Outline application with all matters reserved for the erection of up to four
dwellings and associated infrastructure following demolition of existing buildings on site
Location: Withnell Barn Farm Chorley Road Withnell Chorley PR6 8ED
Case Officer: Johndaniel Jaques
Authorising Officer: Adele Hayes

Applicant: J Vallance
Agent: Mr Chris Betteridge, De Pol Associates

Consultation expiry: 1 June 2021
Decision due by: 17 August 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that outline planning permission is granted subject to conditions.
SITE DESCRIPTION
2. The application site is located in the Green Belt at the end of a rough track off Chorley Road,
Withnell. On the site, and owned by the applicant, are stables set out in a ‘U’ formation, with
an adjacent steel portal framed building to its west. To the south of the stables is a barn with
hayloft, built of block and render, equivalent to two storeys in height with a shallow monopitched corrugated sheet roof. To the south west of the site is a small two storey stone built
dwelling that was permitted to be converted from a barn following a planning appeal under
reference 92/00205/FUL.
3. The woodland which includes trees in the western part of the site is covered by a Tree
Preservation Order (Chorley BC TPO 13 (Withnell) 1991). A Public Right of Way runs from
the end of the rough track leading to the site from Chorley Road in a south westerly
direction. The site also lies within the Coal Low Risk Zone.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
4. The application seeks outline planning permission for the erection of up to four dwellings
and associated infrastructure following demolition of existing buildings on site. All matters
are reserved.
REPRESENTATIONS
5. Two representations have been received. Both welcome the proposal which would improve
the appearance of the area but make some requests as follows:

Agenda Page 32











Agenda Item 3d

The access to the site is a restricted width track and Public Footpath that is in private
ownership, and its use for construction vehicles would not be safely or easily
accommodated up to the proposed development site.
Once completed any vehicles using the access track should be subject to a speed limit.
It is important that delivery and bin lorries can turn around within the site once it is
developed.
People using the livery do not drive up the access track and park away from the site.
The use of the access by occupiers of dwellings and associated traffic would require the
upgrading of the access track. The cost of this and ongoing maintenance would need to
be agreed between the parties involved.
Utilities in the track that serve residential properties must be protected.
Is the existing dwelling to be demolished as it seems to be retained?
Can it be assured that all equestrian use on the site will cease as the application states?
There is scope for further development in the area and there should be no increase in
the number of dwellings being sought, nor should the openness of the Green Belt be
compromised.

CONSULTATIONS
6. Withnell Parish Council – No comments have been received.
7. Lancashire County Council (LCC) Highway Services – Recognise that the site is accessed
from Chorley Road via an existing unadopted access road, which is also a Public Right of
Way. They note that the first 45m of the access road from Chorley Road is narrow and not
up to the width required to allow two vehicles to safely pass each other. Although the access
road has no footways, but is of 'straight' alignment, it provides good forward visibility to allow
pedestrians and vehicles entering to be seen by traffic leaving the site in order to give way at
the wider section of the access road.
8. There is adequate visibility at the junction and the most recent 5-year accident record shows
no personal injury accidents.
9. As this is an outline application the proposed number of bedrooms for each dwelling is not
stated, however, 2no. car parking spaces are shown within each curtilage with space for
turning. The proposed parking provision should accord with the Local Authority Parking
Standard.
10. LCC Highway Services confirm that the submitted indicative layout is acceptable in principle
and recommend an informative regarding any right of way.
11. Lancashire County Council Public Rights of Way – No comments have been received.
12. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) – Recommend conditions for replacement
planting for lost trees; a requirement for a further inspection of the trees to be felled for bats
and installation of new bird nesting (4 boxes) and bat roosting (2 bat roost boxes)
opportunities, and an informative regarding actions if bats are found during any works.
13. Council’s Trees Officer – Notes that the proposal includes the removal of four trees which
would have a significant level of impact on levels of visual amenity, so a replanting condition
is recommended, as is adherence to the relevant British Standard (BS5837:2012) to provide
protection for retained trees off site.
14. United Utilities – Comment that the applicant should drain the site in accordance with
national guidance so it should be drained on a separate system, with surface water draining
in the most sustainable way. They also comment on water supply and their property, assets
and infrastructure.
15. Waste and Contaminated Land Officer – Recommend that a report is submitted to identify
potential sources of contamination and any remediation measures as necessary.

Agenda Page 33

Agenda Item 3d

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of development
16. The application site is located within the Green Belt and falls within the definition of
previously developed land provided within the National Planning Policy Framework (the
Framework). Section 13 of the Framework confirms that the fundamental aim of Green Belt
policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the essential
characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.
17. Development will only be permitted within the Green Belt, in accordance with the
Framework, if it is considered appropriate development or where very special circumstances
can be demonstrated. The Framework confirms that ‘very special circumstances’ will not
exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any
other harm, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.
18. Paragraph 149 of the Framework states that a local planning authority should regard the
construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt but lists a number of
exceptions. One exception listed at paragraph 149 of the Framework of development that
need not be considered inappropriate development in the Green Belt is the limited infilling or
the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land, whether redundant or in
continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would not have a greater impact on
the openness of the Green Belt than the existing development.
19. The site is considered to be previously developed with stables granted planning permission
on appeal (89/00241/FUL) and a storage barn for animal foodstuffs subject to a condition
that the building shall only be used for purposes ancillary to the permitted use of the site for
the breeding and rearing of horses.
20. Whilst the test for previously developed sites such as this relates to the impact on openness,
the Framework does not contain a specific definition of ‘openness’. It is a subjective
judgment which is considered further below, along with objective criteria in making that
assessment. It is considered that in respect of the Framework, the existing site currently has
an impact on the openness of the Green Belt. However, it is important to note that merely
the presence of an existing building on the site currently does not justify any new buildings.
The new buildings must also not “have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt”.
21. To engage with the exceptions of paragraph 149 of the Framework, which is reflected in
policy BNE5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026, the test relates to the existing
development. The openness of an area is clearly affected by the erection or positioning of
any object within it no matter whether the object is clearly visible or not. The openness test
relates to the whole of the site.
22. This part of Withnell is not specified as an area for growth within Core Strategy Policy 1 and
falls to be considered as an ‘other place’. Criterion (f) of Core Strategy Policy 1 reads as
follows:
“In other places – smaller villages, substantially built up frontages and Major Developed
Sites – development will typically be small scale and limited to appropriate infilling,
conversion of buildings and proposals to meet local need, unless there are exceptional
reasons for larger scale redevelopment schemes.”
23. Policy BNE5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 relates to the redevelopment of
previously developed sites in the Green Belt and states that redevelopment of previously
developed sites in the Green Belt will be permitted providing that the appearance of the site
as a whole is maintained or enhanced and that all proposals, including those for partial
redevelopment, are put forward in the context of a comprehensive plan for the site as a
whole.

Agenda Page 34

Agenda Item 3d

24. Whether harm is caused to openness depends on a variety of factors, such as the scale of
the development, its locational context and its spatial and/or visual implications. At present,
the site is occupied by a number of buildings which are spread across the site, and
associated hardstanding areas, as well as paddocks. The presence of this existing
development already causes harm to openness by its mere existence; and case law has
established that for there to be a greater impact, there must be something more than merely
a change.
25. The proposal involves the demolition of a number of (in some cases unsightly) buildings on
the site, which helps to offset the harm caused to openness which would arise from the
proposed development. For clarity, the dwelling referred to in a representation is not within
the red line but within the blue line, indicating it is within the ownership/control of the
applicant, so it would be retained.
26. When assessing volumes of proposals national policy allows for the replacement of a
building provided, among other things, that they are not material larger. The Council
considers that a volume increase of up to 30% is not ‘materially larger’. In this case the
volume of the proposed buildings is only indicative given that the scheme is outline with all
matters reserved. However, the final volume can be assessed under a reserved matters
application to ensure that it is consistent with this outline application. In this case the
applicant has indicated that there would be a slight reduction in the overall volumes of
buildings on the site from the existing 2102 cubic metres to 1840 cubic metres. As such
there would be no material increase, rather a decrease, when considering the impact on the
openness of the Green Belt.
27. In addition, the dwellings themselves could potentially be provided within the footprint of the
existing buildings on the site, although parking spaces serving them as shown on the
indicative layout plan would not. Gardens to serve the dwellings would be provided within
the extent of the previously developed land, and would not incur further into the Green Belt.
As such it is not considered that the proposal would have a greater impact on the openness
of the Green Belt than the existing development.
28. The proposal is considered to accord with exception (g) of paragraph 149 and is not,
therefore, inappropriate development in the Green Belt.
29. In relation to the scale of development in an ‘other area’ as identified by Policy 1(f) of the
Central Lancashire Core Strategy the proposed development is not major development and,
therefore, falls to be considered small scale. As such it is considered that the proposed
development is compliant with Policy 1(f) of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy.
30. Although the existing use of the site provides an element of employment given the site is
used for the care and breeding of horses/a livery, it is not considered that this would be an
employment use of a type that would necessitate the application to be supported by
additional detailed information as required by Policy 1 of the Core Strategy, as it would not
be contrary to it.
31. The proposal is, therefore, considered acceptable in principle subject to conditions requiring
the demolition of the existing buildings and removal of the paddock areas within the red line.
This would ensure that the equestrian use on the site itself cannot continue as a
representation refers to.
Impact on the character and appearance of the area
32. Policy BNE1 (Design Criteria for New Development) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026
stipulates that planning permission will be granted for new development, including
extensions, conversions and free standing structures, provided the proposal does not have a
significantly detrimental impact on the surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout,
building to plot ratio, height, scale and massing, design, orientation and use of materials;
and that the layout, design and landscaping of all elements of the proposal, including any

Agenda Page 35

Agenda Item 3d

internal roads, car parking, footpaths and open spaces, are of a high quality and respect the
character of the site and local area.
33. The application site has a generally tired and unkempt appearance which detracts from the
overall appearance of the area especially when viewed from the public footpath.
34. It is, therefore, likely that new dwellings on the site would improve the overall appearance of
the site and the area it is located within. However, detailed design considerations would be
dealt with at the reserved matters stage.
35. The proposed development is considered to accord with policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local
Plan 2012 -2026 in respect of design considerations.
Impact on neighbouring amenity
36. Policy BNE1 (Design Criteria for New Development) of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026
stipulates that planning permission will be granted for new development, including
extensions, conversions and free standing structures, provided that, where relevant to the
development the proposal would not cause harm to any neighbouring property by virtue of
overlooking, overshadowing, or by creating an overbearing impact; and that the proposal
would not cause an unacceptable degree of noise disturbance to surrounding land uses.
37. Given this is an outline application the impact of the proposals on neighbours’ amenity would
be a detailed matter which would be assessed at reserved matters stage. However, the
indicative layout plan shows that it is likely that the site could be designed to ensure that
there would not be a major loss of amenity to those living near the site, with the nearest
properties being Withnell Barn Farm (which is in the ownership/control of the applicant) and
The Lodge to the south west of the site.
38. The proposed development is considered to be a compatible use with its surroundings and
would not give rise to adverse impacts of noise and disturbance given the small-scale
domestic nature of the proposal.
39. The proposed development is considered to accord with the provisions of policy BNE1 of the
Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 20126 in respect of amenity.
Highway safety
40. LCC Highway Services consider that the access serving the site whilst not being to the usual
standard provides good forward visibility so that pedestrians and vehicles entering could be
seen by traffic leaving the site, so that they could give way at the wider section of the access
road. The junction with Chorley Road provides adequate visibility. Sufficient parking and
manoeuvring space is likely to be able to be provided within the site and it is considered that
the submitted indicative layout is acceptable in principle. The maintenance of the access is a
civil matter which cannot be considered in determining the application. LCC have not
requested any speed limits to be introduced, and as such it is not considered this is
required. Overall, it is considered that the indicative access and parking arrangements are
acceptable in principle and highway impacts would not be significantly adverse. As such the
proposal accords with Policy 3 of the Core Strategy and policies ST1 and ST4 of the Chorley
Local Plan 2012 - 2026.
Ecology/Trees
41. Policy 22 of the Core Strategy seeks to conserve, protect and enhance biodiversity and
geodiversity and policies BNE 9, 10 and 11 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 seek to
protect biodiversity and nature conservation assets including trees. The application is
accompanied by a baseline ecological survey and impact assessment of the site. The
ecological survey says that it is reasonable to assume that there would be no likely negative
impact upon bats or great crested newts of other protected species resulting from the

Agenda Page 36

Agenda Item 3d

proposal, although precautions are advised due to the potential for bird nesting and bat
roosting and compensatory provision should be provided
42. The ecological report has been reviewed by the Council’s ecology advisors (Greater
Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU)) who raise no objections. However, they recommend
conditions requiring replacement planting for lost trees; a requirement for a further
inspection of the trees to be felled for bats given these have moderate bat roosting potential,
and installation of new bird nesting (4 boxes) and bat roosting (2 bat roost boxes)
opportunities, and an informative regarding actions if bats are found during any works. With
these controls in place through conditions, it is considered that the proposal would not have
a detrimental impact on bats or birds or other protected species.
43. In relation to trees a total of four trees would be felled as part of the works. The Council’s
Tree Officer considers that this would have a significant level of impact on levels of visual
amenity but has not raised an objection to the proposal. It is considered that the benefits of
bringing forward the scheme would outweigh the loss of visual amenity that the trees provide
and, therefore, it is appropriate to recommend that a replanting condition, along with
adherence to the relevant British Standard (BS5837:2012) to provide protection for retained
trees off site.
44. Therefore, it is considered that the proposal accords with the requirements of the
Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2018 as amended, policy 22 of the Core
Strategy and policies BNE9, BNE10 and BNE11 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 -2026.
Public open space
45. Policy HS4 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 requires public open space contributions
for new dwellings to be provided in order to overcome the harm of developments being
implemented without facilities being provided.
46. Until recently the National Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG) previously set out a
threshold for tariff-style contributions, stating that planning obligations should not be sought
from developments of 10 or less dwellings and which have a maximum combined floorspace
of no more than 1000 square metres. This guidance has been removed from the latest
NPPG and has been replaced with a requirement that planning obligations for affordable
housing should only be sought for residential developments that are major developments.
47. Specifically, the guidance was derived from the order of the Court of Appeal dated 13 May
2016, which gave legal effect to the policy set out in the Written Ministerial Statement of 28
November 2014 which has not been withdrawn and which should, therefore, clearly still be
taken into account as a material consideration in the assessment of planning applications.
48. To this end whilst it would normally be inappropriate to require any affordable housing or
social infrastructure contributions on sites below the thresholds stated, local circumstances
may justify lower (or no) thresholds as an exception to the national policy. It would then be a
matter for the decision-maker to decide how much weight to give to lower thresholds justified
by local circumstances.
49. Consequently, the Council must determine what lower thresholds are appropriate based on
local circumstances as an exception to national policies and how much weight to give to the
benefit of requiring a payment for 10, or fewer, dwellings. The Council has agreed to only
seek contributions towards provision for children/young people on developments of 10
dwellings or less.
50. There is currently a deficit of provision in Brindle and Houghton in relation to this standard, a
contribution towards new provision in the ward is, therefore, required from this development.
However, a financial contribution for off-site provision can only be requested if there is an
identified scheme for new provision and none are identified at present.
51. Therefore, a public open space commuted sum is not requested for this scheme.

Agenda Page 37

Agenda Item 3d

Sustainability
52. Policy 27 of the Core Strategy requires all new dwellings to be constructed to Level 4 of the
Code for Sustainable Homes or Level 6 if they are commenced from 1st January 2016. It
also requires sites of five or more dwellings to have either additional building fabric
insulation measures or reduce the carbon dioxide emissions of predicted energy use by at
least 15% through decentralised, renewable or low carbon energy sources. The 2015
Deregulation Bill received Royal Assent on Thursday 26th March 2015, which effectively
removes Code for Sustainable Homes. The Bill does include transitional provisions which
include:
“For the specific issue of energy performance, local planning authorities will continue to be
able to set and apply policies in their Local Plans which require compliance with energy
performance standards that exceed the energy requirements of Building Regulations until
commencement of amendments to the Planning and Energy Act 2008 in the Deregulation
Bill 2015. This is expected to happen alongside the introduction of zero carbon homes policy
in late 2016. The government has stated that, from then, the energy performance
requirements in Building Regulations will be set at a level equivalent to the (outgoing) Code
for Sustainable Homes Level 4. Until the amendment is commenced, we would expect local
planning authorities to take this statement of the government’s intention into account in
applying existing policies and not set conditions with requirements above a Code Level 4
equivalent.”
“Where there is an existing plan policy which references the Code for Sustainable Homes,
authorities may continue to apply a requirement for a water efficiency standard equivalent to
the new national technical standard, or in the case of energy a standard consistent with the
policy set out in the earlier paragraph in this statement, concerning energy performance.”
53. Given this change, instead of meeting the code level, the dwellings should achieve a
minimum dwelling emission rate of 19% above 2013 Building Regulations in accordance
with the above provisions. This can be controlled by condition.
54. In addition, it is considered that the dwellings should be provided with an electric vehicle
charging point to enable the use of alternative fuels for transport purposes in order that
sustainable travel alternatives needs are supported and promoted within the development in
accordance with Policy 3 of the Core Strategy.
Contamination
55. Paragraph 183 of the Framework sets out that sites should be suitable for the proposed use
taking account of ground conditions and any risks arising from land instability and
contamination. The Waste and Contaminated Land Officer has said that due to the sensitive
end-use of the development (residential housing with gardens), the applicant should submit
a report to identify potential sources of contamination and any remediation measures as
necessary. A suitable condition is recommended.
Drainage
56. Policy 17 of the Core Strategy promotes designs that will be adaptable to climate change
and adopting principles of sustainable construction including Sustainable Drainage Systems.
United Utilities have been consulted on this application and raise no objections. They have
made comments, but not recommended conditions in this case. As such the points they
raised will be dealt with by an informative.
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL)
57. The Chorley CIL Infrastructure Charging Schedule provides a specific amount for
development. The CIL Charging Schedule was adopted on 16 July 2013 and charging
commenced on 1 September 2013. The proposed development would be a chargeable

Agenda Page 38

Agenda Item 3d

development and the charge is subject to indexation in accordance with the Council’s
Charging Schedule.
CONCLUSION
58. The proposal accords with the exception of paragraph 145 (g) of the National Planning
Policy Framework and is not, therefore, inappropriate development in the Green Belt. The
proposal would result in the loss of some trees on the site which provide a high contribution
to levels of visual amenity, but the benefits of bringing forward the scheme would outweigh
the loss of visual amenity that the trees provide which would be replaced appropriately. The
proposal would not prejudice highway safety and would not be detrimental to nature
conservation interests or European protected species. Contamination and drainage issues
can be dealt with by the use of conditions/informatives. The proposed development would
make a small contribution to the Council’s housing land supply. The application is
considered to accord with the relevant policies of the Development Plan and is
recommended for approval, subject to conditions.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
Ref:
89/00209/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 5 September 1989
Description: Siting of a mobile home for a temporary period
Ref:
89/00241/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 5 September 1989
Description: Single storey stable block for the care and breeding of horses
Ref:
90/00461/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 4 September 1990
Description: Conversion of existing stone barn to dwelling
Ref:
90/01001/FUL
Decision: PERFPP
Decision Date: 5 February 1991
Description: Erection of storage barn for animal foodstuffs
Ref:
92/00205/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 1 September 1992
Description: Conversion of existing redundant barn to living accommodation
Ref:
15/01234/FUL
Decision: PERFPP
Decision Date: 18 February 2016
Description: Demolition of existing barn and existing residential dwelling and replacement
with a single residential dwelling
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.
Suggested conditions
1. An application for approval of the reserved matters (namely the access, appearance, layout,
scale and landscaping of the site) must be made to the Council before the expiration of three
years from the date of this permission and the development hereby permitted must be begun
two years from the date of approval of the last of the reserved matters to be approved.
Reason: This condition is required to be imposed by the provisions of Article 3 (1) of the Town
and Country Planning (General Development Procedure) Order 1995 and Section 92 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990 as amended by Section 51 of the Planning and
Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
below:

Agenda Page 39

Title
Site Plan

Agenda Item 3d

Plan Ref
WFBD Amended 5/7/2021

Received On
25 June 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. The outline planning permission hereby approved relates to the erection of up to four
residential units. The application for reserved matters shall not exceed four residential units.
Reason: In the interests of the appropriate development of the site, to prevent intensification in
the development of the site and in the interests of the visual amenities of the area.
4. As part of the first application for reserved matters or prior to the commencement of the
development the following details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority:
a)
b)
c)
d)

Details of the colour, form and texture of all external facing materials to the proposed
dwellings.
Details of the colour, form and texture of all hard ground-surfacing materials.
Location, design and materials of all fences, walls and other boundary treatments.
The finished floor level of the proposed dwellings.

The development thereafter shall be completed in accordance with the approved details. Prior to
the first occupation of the dwelling hereby permitted all fences and walls shown in the approved
details to bound its plot shall have been erected in conformity with the approved details.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenities and character of the area and to provide
reasonable standards of privacy to residents.
5. The buildings and paddock areas on the site shall be demolished/removed prior to
commencement of development of any dwellings on the site.
Reason: To ensure that the equestrian use on the site ceases.
6. Before any tree felling is carried out full details (including species, number, stature and
location) of the replacement tree planting shall have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The replacement tree planting shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details within nine months of the tree felling and retained
thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the area.
7. Any works to trees shall be undertaken in accordance with British Standard BS 5837:2012 or
any subsequent amendment to the British Standards.
Reason: To safeguard the health and appearance of off-site trees that are to be retained.
8. Prior to any works to the trees that are to be felled being undertaken, they shall be inspected
further immediately prior to their felling by a suitably qualified person. Prior to any works to the
trees that are to be felled being undertaken a scheme of new bird nesting and bat roosting
opportunities on or near the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme shall provide a minimum of 4 bird nesting boxes and 2 bat
roosting boxes. The scheme shall be carried out fully in accordance with the approved details
prior to any felling works to trees commencing.
Reason: To ensure protected species are not detrimentally affected by the proposals.
9. Due to the sensitive end-use of the development (residential housing with garden), the
development hereby permitted shall not commence until the applicant has submitted to and had

Agenda Page 40

Agenda Item 3d

approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority a report to identify any potential sources of
contamination on the site and where appropriate, necessary remediation measures.
The report should include an initial desk study, site walkover and preliminary risk assessment. If
the initial study identifies the potential for contamination to exist on site, the scope of a further
study must then be agreed in writing with Local Planning Authority and thereafter undertaken
and shall include details of the necessary remediation measures. The development should
thereafter only be carried out following the remediation of the site in full accordance with the
measures stipulated in the approved report.
Reason: To protect the environment and prevent harm to human health by ensuring that the
land is remediated to an appropriate standard for the proposed end use.
10. Prior to the construction of the superstructure of any of the dwellings hereby permitted or
with any reserved matter application, details shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority demonstrating that each dwelling will achieve a minimum Dwelling
Emission Rate of 19% above 2013 Building Regulations. The development thereafter shall be
completed in accordance with the approved details.
Reason: Policy 27 of the Adopted Central Lancashire Core Strategy requires new dwellings to
be built to Code for Sustainable Homes Level 4 however following the Deregulation Bill 2015
receiving Royal Ascent it is no longer possible to set conditions with requirements above a Code
Level 4 equivalent. However, as Policy 27 is an adopted Policy it is still possible to secure
energy efficiency reduction as part of new residential schemes in the interests of minimising the
environmental impact of the development.

Agenda Page 41

Agenda Item 3d

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 43 Agenda Item 3d

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item
21/00461/OUT

Outline application with all matters reserved
for the erection of up to four dwellings and
associated infrastructure following
demolition of existing buildings on site

Agenda Page 44 Agenda Item 3d

Withnell Farm Barn

Location Plan

Agenda Page 45 Agenda Item 3d

Aerial photo

Agenda Page 46 Agenda Item 3d

Satellite Image 2020

Agenda Page 47 Agenda Item 3d

Existing Site Plan

Agenda Page 48 Agenda Item 3d

Indicative Proposed Site Plan

Agenda Page 49 Agenda Item 3d

Site photo – May 2021

Agenda Page 50 Agenda Item 3d

Site photo – May 2021

Agenda Page 51 Agenda Item 3d

Site photo – May 2021

Agenda Page 52 Agenda Item 3d

Agenda Page 53

C O M M I TTE E

Agenda Item 3d

R E PO R T

REPORT OF

MEETING

DATE

Director of Planning
and Development

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

ADDENDUM

ITEM 3d - 21/00461/OUT - Withnell Barn Farm, Chorley Road, Withnell, Chorley, PR6
8ED
Paragraph 54 of the Report refers to a condition relating to the provision of electric vehicle
charging points, but the wording for this is not on the list of recommended conditions. The
recommended condition wording is as follows:
11. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, that dwelling shall be provided with an
electric vehicle charging point which shall be retained for that purpose thereafter.
Reason: To enable the use of alternative fuels for transport purposes such as electric vehicle
charging stations in order that sustainable travel alternatives needs are supported and
promoted within the development in accordance with Policy 3 of the Adopted Central
Lancashire Core Strategy.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 55

Agenda Item 3e

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00601/CB3
Validation Date: 13 May 2021
Ward: Adlington And Anderton
Type of Application: Full Planning

Proposal: Provision of 9no. car parking spaces for nos. 119 to 135 Chorley Road and
erection of galvanised mild steel railings
Location: King Georges Field Play Area Chorley Road Adlington
Case Officer: Chris Smith

Applicant: Chorley Council
Agent: Jason Reynolds, JYM Partnership LLP

Consultation expiry: 22 June 2021
Decision due by: 13 August 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.
SITE DESCRIPTION
2. The application site is located in the settlement area of Adlington to the rear of a row of
terraced residential properties, nos. 119 to 135 Chorley Road. The site is a narrow
rectangular parcel of land which sits just within the boundary of King George’s playing fields.
Part of the site is occupied by a storage building.
3. To the south west of the site there is a privately owned vehicle access track which serves the
rear of the terraced properties. The character of the immediate locality is predominantly
residential although there are some commercial uses located along Chorley Road to the
south of the site.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
4. The application seeks planning permission for the provision of 9no. car parking spaces and
the erection of metal rail fencing following the demolition of the existing storage building.
REPRESENTATIONS
5. No representations have been received.
CONSULTATIONS
6. Adlington Town Council – Have stated that the town council welcomes this proposal as part
of an upgrade of this important local sports and recreational facility.

Agenda Page 56

Agenda Item 3e

7. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) – Have not raised any objections to the proposed
development.
8. Lancashire County Council Highway Services (LCC Highways) – Have stated that they do
not have any objections to the proposed development and are of the opinion that it would not
have a significant impact on highway safety, capacity or amenity in the immediate vicinity of
the site.
9. Chorley Council’s Tree Officer – Advises that the proposed development would require the
removal of 1no. cherry tree and appropriate replanting would mitigate this loss. He also
comments that the proposed development could have negative impact on existing trees to be
retained, however, this could be mitigated through the use of conditions.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of the development
10. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) states that plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development and for decision making
this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay, or where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting permission
unless the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets of particular
importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed.
11. The application site is located in the settlement area of Adlington. Policy V2 of the Chorley
Local Plan 2012 - 2026 states that within the settlement areas excluded from the Green Belt,
and identified on the Policies Map, there is a presumption in favour of appropriate sustainable
development.
12. The principle of the proposed development is, therefore, considered to be an acceptable one,
subject to material planning considerations.
Highway safety
13. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that developments must not cause
severe residual cumulative highways impact or prejudice highway safety, pedestrian safety,
the free flow of traffic, and or reduce the number of on-site parking spaces.
14. LCC Highways state that they do not have any objections to the proposed development and
are of the opinion that it would not have a significant impact on highway safety, capacity or
amenity in the immediate vicinity of the site. They also state that there is sufficient room to
allow cars to enter and exit the private access road which is adjacent to the application site in
forward gear and use the shared space between nos. 117 and 119 Chorley Road to
undertake a turning manoeuvre. Comment is also made that the track is an established
private access and there are no concerns with vehicles using this access.
15. It is not, therefore, considered that the proposed development would prejudice highway or
pedestrian safety.
Design and impact on the character of the area
16. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.
17. Parts of the site are relatively overgrown with grass and, therefore, the proposed
development would introduce an active use which would rejuvenate the site. The private

Agenda Page 57

Agenda Item 3e

access track located adjacent to the site is already used by vehicles and it is not considered
that the proposed car park would appear out of place within this prevailing context.
18. The proposed fencing would demarcate the proposed car parking area separating the site
from the adjacent playing fields and it is not considered that it would appear out of place
within the context of the immediate locality. It would be relatively modest in terms of size and
scale with a maximum height of approximately 1.2m and it would not therefore appear unduly
prominent from the nearest public vantage points.
Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
19. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free-standing
structures, provided that, the development would not cause harm to any neighbouring
property by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing or by creating overbearing impacts.
20. Whilst it is acknowledged that the provision of car parking spaces located adjacent to
residential properties could lead to comings and goings that may disrupt residents, it is noted
that the track located adjacent to the site is already used by vehicles and a parcel of land
located between nos. 117 and 119 Chorley Road is used for off road car parking. It is not
considered that the proposed development would have a significantly greater or more
adverse impact upon neighbouring amenity than these existing arrangements.
21. Furthermore, it is not considered there would be a material change in or intensification of
traffic in the vicinity of the site given that the car parking spaces would predominantly be used
by existing neighbouring residents.
22. The proposed fence would be relatively modest in terms of size and scale with a maximum
height of approximately 1.2m and its impact upon neighbouring amenity would be negligible.
Ecology
23. Policy BNE9 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 sets out how development should
safeguard biodiversity. Any adverse impacts on biodiversity should be avoided, and if
unavoidable should be reduced or appropriately mitigated and/or compensated.
24. Policy BNE11 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that planning permission will not
be granted for development which would have an adverse effect on a priority species, unless
the benefits of the development outweigh the need to maintain the population of the species
in situ.
25. The application has been supported by the provision of a report titled ‘Inspection &
Assessment in Relation to Bats & Breeding Birds’, dated July 2021 prepared by Tyrer
Ecological Consultants Ltd. The Council’s appointed ecological consultants, The Greater
Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) have not raised any objections to the proposed
development and advise that the report has followed best practice methods and that they
accept its findings.
Impact on trees
26. Policy BNE10 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 seeks to protect trees that make a
valuable contribution to the character of an area and requires replacement planting to be
undertaken where the benefits of the development outweigh the loss of some trees.
27. The Council’s Tree Officer advises that it appears that the proposed development would
require the removal of 1no. cherry tree. The applicant’s agent has stated that it is not the
intention to remove any trees and the application form states that no trees would be impacted
by the development. However, in the event that tree felling is required, a scheme for
appropriate replanting is to be secured by a planning condition in order to protect the visual
amenity of the area.

Agenda Page 58

Agenda Item 3e

28. The Tree Officer also advise that the proposed development could have negative impacts on
trees to be retained as a result of root damage and adherence to BS5837:2012 would
minimise the potential for this. This is to be secured by a suitably worded planning condition
attached to any grant of planning permission.
CONCLUSION
29. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the existing site or the surrounding area, nor would it cause any
significant harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents, highway safety, ecology or trees. It
is, therefore, considered that the development accords with policies BNE1, BNE9 and BNE11
of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026. Consequently, it is recommended that the application
is approved.
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
Ref:

21/00607/FUL

Description:

Decision: REC

Decision Date: Pending

New Build Sports Changing Facility

Suggested conditions
1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.
2. The external facing materials, detailed on the approved plans, shall be used and no others
substituted unless alternatives are first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, when the development shall then be carried out in accordance with the alternatives
approved.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality.
3. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
below:
Title
LOCTION PLAN
PROPOSED SITE PLAN

Plan Ref
P012 rev. A
P011 rev. A

Received On
25 June 2021
25 June 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
4. During the construction period, all trees to be retained shall be protected in accordance with
British Standard BS 5837:2012 or any subsequent amendment to the British Standards.
Reason: To safeguard the trees to be retained.
5. Work should be undertaken in line with the working practices outlined in sections 8.2 and 8.3
and the Biodiversity Enhancement Strategy outlined in appendix II of the report titled 'Inspection
& Assessment in Relation to Bats & Breeding Birds' carried out by Tyrer Ecological Consultants

Agenda Page 59

Agenda Item 3e

Ltd, received on 15th July 2021. If at any time any protected species are suspected of being
present on the site, work should cease immediately, and an ecologist contacted.
Reason: To safeguard protected species
6. Before any tree felling is carried out full details (including species, number, stature and
location) of the replacement tree planting shall have been submitted to and approved in writing
by the Local Planning Authority. The replacement tree planting shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved details within nine months of the tree felling.
Reason: To safeguard the visual amenity of the area.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3e
Agenda Page 61

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 63 Agenda Item 3e

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item 3e
21/00601/CB3

Provision of 9no. car parking spaces for nos. 119 to 135
Chorley Road and erection of galvanised mild steel railings
(following demolition of storage building)

Agenda Page 64 Agenda Item 3e

King Georges Field, Chorley Road, Adlington

Location plan

Agenda Page 65 Agenda Item 3e

Site Plan

Agenda Page 66 Agenda Item 3e

Site photo

Agenda Page 67 Agenda Item 3e

Site photo

Agenda Page 68 Agenda Item 3e

Site photo

Agenda Page 69 Agenda Item 3e

Site photo

Agenda Page 70 Agenda Item 3e

Agenda Page 71

Agenda Item 3f

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00607/CB3
Validation Date: 14 May 2021
Ward: Adlington And Anderton
Type of Application: Chorley Regulation 3

Proposal: Demolition of existing buildings and erection of a sports changing facility
building with associated disabled parking space and works
Location: King Georges Field Chorley Road Adlington
Case Officer: Johndaniel Jaques

Applicant: Chorley Council
Agent: Mr Jason Reynolds, JYM Partnership LLP

Consultation expiry: 5 August 2021
Decision due by: 17 August 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.
SITE DESCRIPTION
1. The application site allocated as Existing Sport and Recreational Facilities by policy HW2 of
the Chorley Local Plan 2012 - 2026 and is located in the settlement area of Adlington to the
rear of a row of terraced residential properties, nos. 119 to 135 Chorley Road. The site
contains two single storey buildings separated by a path which are within the boundary of
King George’s playing fields. One of the buildings is used as changing rooms and the other
for storage. There are also trees on the site.
2. To the south west of the site there is a privately owned vehicle access track which serves
the rear of the terraced properties. The character of the immediate locality is predominantly
residential although there are some commercial uses located along Chorley Road to the
south of the site.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
3. The application seeks planning permission for the demolition of the existing buildings and
erection of a sports changing facility building with associated disabled parking space and
works. The disabled parking space and delivery area would be access from the existing
vehicular access between 117 and 119 Chorley Road.
REPRESENTATIONS
4. Two representations have been received, one objection which accepts that the buildings
need to be replaced, and one support which raises issues.
5. The following issues have been raised:

Agenda Page 72


























Agenda Item 3f

A travel plan to provide details of car parking for away teams should be attached to the
lease to reduce the dangerous parking in the area on Saturday mornings. The use of
the building should be controlled to prevent late night use that would disturb existing
residents.
Improvements to the wider playing field would be welcome.
Could a defibrillator be installed at the building?
It is not clear what the application form site area refers to.
A condition should be applied to ensure that any alteration to the highway which
seems to only be temporary for construction purposes is returned to its original state.
If no public rights of way are proposed how can anyone access the disable parking
space?
The main sewer cannot cope with drainage to it.
Why is a bin store proposed some distance from the building entrance?
The siting of the building is flawed, it should be sited near Harding Street to avoid
numerous problems. The decision should be deferred to enable the Council to
investigate this thoroughly.
The size of the building is totally out of proportion with what is required, and more than
doubles the size of the facility. It will not be used because players do not change
before playing; they come already changed. It seems to serve 7 pitches so it would not
be big enough to avoid queues to use the facility.
The footprint of the building should not be bigger than the existing.
The building has an unusable roof void so it is too high.
The viewing terraces will result in anti-social behaviour.
Lighting is not required.
Views of the playing pitches and amenity of residents will be affected. The committee
should visit the site to assess the impact on residents’ amenity as the plans use
sightlines from the least affected properties.
Is there a hidden agenda about the future use of the building? The foyer is too large
and the use needs to be controlled so it does not turn into a hall or community room.
The building’s design is not in keeping with its parkland setting.
The carbon release of felling mature trees is not accounted for and many more trees
need to be planted to compensate for this reducing the area of parkland that people
can use.
The impact on bats has not been considered.
The existing path between the buildings would be lost so how will people get past the
building?
The Council should adhere to its Fields in Trust obligations which mean that football
should not benefit to the exclusion of others.
The proposal fails to deliver what was promised at pre-application stage following
detailed consultation.

CONSULTATIONS
6. Adlington Town Council – Have stated that the Town Council welcomes this proposal which
is a long awaited scheme that will improve the quality and capacity of this important local
sports and recreational facility.
7. Sport England – Have no objections and are satisfied that the proposed development is for
ancillary facilities supporting the use of the site as a playing field; it doesn’t affect the
quantity, quality, or adversely affect the use of playing pitches and therefore meets
Exception 2 of its Playing Fields Policy, in that:
'The proposed development is for ancillary facilities supporting the principal use of the site
as a playing field and does not affect the quantity or quality of playing pitches or otherwise
adversely affect their use.'
8. It is also considers that the development proposal accords with paragraph 97 of the National
Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) in that ‘the development is for alternative

Agenda Page 73

Agenda Item 3f

sports and recreational provision, the benefits of which clearly outweigh the loss of the
current or former use’.
9. Sport England has also consulted with the Football Foundation (FF). The FF are satisfied
with the location and consider the proposal makes best use of the space. They also confirm
that the building meets their design standards, and its layout maximises viewing areas and
ability to capture secondary spend.
10. Greater Manchester Ecology Unit (GMEU) – Have no objections subject to conditions
relating to bats and ecological enhancement.
11. Lancashire County Council Highway Services (LCC Highways) – Have stated that they do
not have any objections to the proposed development and are of the opinion that it would
not have a significant impact on highway safety, capacity or amenity in the immediate
vicinity of the site. They request that consideration is given to the use of the private shared
access between nos.117 and 119 Chorley Road by residents and users of the recreational
area, and request that deliveries and contractor parking is undertaken considerately.
12. Chorley Council’s Tree Officer – Advises that the proposed path to the south east of the site
is close to several early mature trees and could impact on them. He recommends that either
the path is re-routed or a no dig construction method and porous surface used. He refers to
adhering to the relevant British Standard to minimise impacts on all retained trees.
13. United Utilities – Refer to there being a number of water assets running through the site,
which may affect the submitted layout. Although it appears that the proposal is not proposed
directly over the water mains it is recommended that the applicant understands the exact
location of the assets prior to determination of the application. United Utilities recommend
that the application is not progressed further until this issue has been resolved. Conditions
regarding a surface water drainage scheme, and foul water are recommended, should the
application progress.
14. Waste & Contaminated Land – Have no objections as the proposed bin storage appears to
be adequate.
15. CIL Officer – Comment that the development will be liable for CIL.
16. Property Team – No response has been received.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of the development
17. The National Planning Policy Framework (The Framework) states that plans and decisions
should apply a presumption in favour of sustainable development and for decision making
this means approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay, or where there are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which are most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless the application of policies in this Framework that protect areas or assets
of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the development proposed.
18. Section 8 of the Framework seeks to promote healthy and safe communities. To do this at
paragraph 93 it says that planning policies and decisions should:
(a) plan positively for the provision and use of shared spaces, community facilities (such as
local shops, meeting places, sports venues, open space, cultural buildings, public houses
and places of worship) and other local services to enhance the sustainability of communities
and residential environments;
(b) take into account and support the delivery of local strategies to improve health, social
and cultural well-being for all sections of the community;

Agenda Page 74

Agenda Item 3f

(c) guard against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where
this would reduce the community’s ability to meet its day-to-day needs;
(d) ensure that established shops, facilities and services are able to develop and modernise,
and are retained for the benefit of the community; and
(e) ensure an integrated approach to considering the location of housing, economic uses
and community facilities and services.
19. Paragraph 99 of the Framework seeks to prevent the loss of existing open space, sports and
recreation buildings and land, saying these should not be built on unless among other
things:
(c) the development is for alternative sports and recreational provision, the benefits of which
clearly outweigh the loss of the current or former use.
20. Policy 24 of the Central Lancashire Core Strategy seeks to protect existing sport and
recreation facilities to ensure that everyone has the opportunity to access good sport,
physical activity and recreation facilities.
21. The site is allocated as Existing Sport and Recreational Facilities by policy HW2 of the
Chorley Local Plan 2012 - 2026. This policy seeks to protect existing open space, sport and
recreational facilities, however, it does not specifically deal with the replacement of ancillary
sports facilities. Instead this is dealt with by policy HW1 of the Chorley Local Plan. This sets
out 4 criteria that should be met in order to allow ancillary development for an existing open
space, sport or recreational facility, which are:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.

It is in connection with and will enhance the recreational and/or amenity value of the
open space.
It is of a size and scale which does not detract from the character of the open space.
It will not have a detrimental effect on any site of nature conservation value.
It does not result in the loss of any other sporting facility on the site.

22. In relation to the first of these criteria it is considered that the proposal would provide high
quality facilities which would replace old and tired looking facilities on the site, and would be
a major improvement in terms of the facilities available to those using them. Although Sport
England say that the proposal would require a slight movement of the adjacent football pitch
they have not raised any objections as a result and, therefore, it is considered that the
proposal would be consistent with the final criteria. The second criteria is discussed under
an appropriate section later in the report. In terms of the third criteria this proposal would not
affect any site designated for nature conservation value.
23. The application site is located in the settlement area of Adlington. Policy V2 of the Chorley
Local Plan 2012 - 2026 states that within the settlement areas excluded from the Green Belt,
and identified on the Policies Map, there is a presumption in favour of appropriate
sustainable development.
24. The principle of the proposed development is, therefore, considered to be an acceptable
one, subject to material planning considerations.
Highway safety
25. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that developments must not cause
severe residual cumulative highways impact or prejudice highway safety, pedestrian safety,
the free flow of traffic, and or reduce the number of on-site parking spaces.
26. LCC Highways state that they do not have any objections to the proposed development and
are of the opinion that it would not have a significant impact on highway safety, capacity or

Agenda Page 75

Agenda Item 3f

amenity in the immediate vicinity of the site. The delivery area and disabled parking space
are permanent proposals and, therefore, would not need to revert to their former state as
objections suggest.
27. In terms of issues relating to cars parking in the area causing issues as raised in objections,
whilst LCC Highways have not recommended a condition regarding a full travel plan, they
have requested consideration is given to the use of the private shared access between 117
and 119 Chorley Road by residents and users of the recreational area, and request that
deliveries and contractor parking is undertaken considerately. Therefore, it would be prudent
to condition further details of how contractor’s parking and deliveries during the construction
period are to be undertaken and managed, and once the facility is available for use how
sustainable transport can be promoted alongside car parking facilities in the area.
28. The plans show that a path is to be provided that would cross the site behind the building,
which would maintain access across the site as is the case now, although in a different
location, which is acceptable.
29. It is not, therefore, considered that the proposed development would prejudice highway or
pedestrian safety.
Design and impact on the character of the area
30. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.
31. The existing storage building and changing facilities buildings to be demolished are visible
from various public vantage points located beyond the boundaries of the site including from
King George’s playing fields. However, the design of the buildings is functional and whilst
they are in a good state of repair, it is not considered that they make a significant
contribution to the visual characteristics of the area being blank functional buildings with little
visual interest and, therefore, their demolition would not have a significant detrimental
impact on the character of the immediate locality.
32. The new building would provide a more visually appealing building than those that currently
exist, with a simple brick-built design with a pitched roof. It provides fenestration looking out
towards the playing fields, and to the two other main elevations. It would be higher than the
existing buildings on the site but the pitched roof enables the void roof space to house the
required mechanical and electrical installation, and overall the height of the building which is
single storey (5.3m high) is considered acceptable. Although the floorspace of the building
would be larger than the existing buildings, it is not excessive and would not detract from the
character and appearance of the open space in which it is located, thereby also complying
with the second criteria in policy HW1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026. It would
provide facilities that would meet the requirements of the Football Federation and is
considered acceptable.
33. The bin store proposed would enable refuse from the building to be collected without having
to enter into the site, and the Waste & Contaminated Land Officer considers that this
provision is adequate. A condition is to be applied to ensure that the store is designed
satisfactorily.
34. United Utilities have recommended that further work is undertaken to trace underground
water assets in the area, before the application has been determined. The applicant has
provided further information which was provided to them by United Utilities which indicates
that it is unlikely there are any assets in the area where the building is proposed. Therefore,
it is not considered that this would prevent the determination of the application, and the
applicant is aware of the issue, which may require them to undertake further survey work

Agenda Page 76

Agenda Item 3f

prior to work commencing on site. The conditions regarding a surface water drainage
scheme and foul water are recommend to be applied.
Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
35. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free-standing
structures, provided that, the development would not cause harm to any neighbouring
property by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing or by creating overbearing impacts.
36. Although the proposed building would be wider (12.815m) than the existing buildings (which
are 8.78m and 12.25m wide) and would be higher than the existing buildings it would be set
back further from the neighbouring properties on Chorley Road than the existing storage
building. It would also be almost 30m from the front of 1 Springfield Road which fronts the
site but views between it and the site are obscured by the existing trees, and trees are
proposed to be planted between the building and properties on Chorley Road, to help
mitigate any perceived amenity issues. These relationships are considered acceptable in
terms of the impact of the proposal on the amenity of existing residents.
37. The viewing platform area is relatively small and whilst there is always a risk that surfaced
open areas can attract anti-social behaviour, given that this would be visible from the playing
fields and nearby paths the risks of this occurring are not considered to warrant refusal of
the application.
38. Lighting that requires planning permission does not form part of the proposal. However,
external areas around the building would be lit to safeguard the children using the facility
and to provide a safe environment during early dusk hours in the autumn/winter/spring
months but such lighting would not be used when the building is not in use.
39. Currently the use of the buildings on the site is not subject to conditions to limit their use or
the hours they can be used. The proposal is for a sports changing facility and, therefore, it is
not envisaged that it would be used for a range of other uses or generally outside the hours
of daylight (given it would be used when the football pitches are in use) which would be selflimiting in terms of its hours of use. The foyer area could possibly be used for meetings (as it
is understood that the building is planned to be leased to Adlington Juniors Football Club)
but generally is an area where teas and coffees can be served and parents can watch their
children playing football if they do not want to use the outdoor viewing area. Therefore, it is
not considered that conditions to restrict its use or hours of operation would be necessary;
but could be written into the lease should Members feel that is necessary.
Ecology
40. Policy BNE9 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 sets out how development should
safeguard biodiversity. Any adverse impacts on biodiversity should be avoided, and if
unavoidable should be reduced or appropriately mitigated and/or compensated.
41. Policy BNE11 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that planning permission will not
be granted for development which would have an adverse effect on a priority species,
unless the benefits of the development outweigh the need to maintain the population of the
species in situ.
42. The Council’s appointed ecological consultants, The Greater Manchester Ecology Unit
(GMEU) advise that the submitted bat and birds survey report found that the buildings had
negligible potential to support roosting bats, so no further survey work is required, and the
report is acceptable. They recommend that as a precaution, measures set out in section 8.3
of the report should be followed. The measures include that demolition works are supervised
by a suitably licensed ecologist, and enhancements for bats are provided (which are
recommended to be conditioned), and a bat sensitive lighting plan produced (an informative
is recommended to deal with this as lighting does not form part of the proposals).

Agenda Page 77

Agenda Item 3f

Impact on trees
43. Policy BNE10 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 seeks to protect trees that make a
valuable contribution to the character of an area and requires replacement planting to be
undertaken where the benefits of the development outweigh the loss of some trees.
44. The Council’s Tree Officer advises that the path that leads to the proposed bin store could
have an impact on the health of retained trees. To minimise this it is recommended that
conditions are applied to ensure that a no dig construction method and porous surface are
used, and that works in the root protection zones of the trees adhere to the relevant British
Standard (BS5837:2012).
45. Therefore, it is considered that any impact on trees would be limited as much as possible
and the proposal would be acceptable in this regard.
Other matters
46. The issues of improvements to the wider playing field and installation of a defibrillator at the
building are not relevant to this planning application.
CONCLUSION
47. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the existing site or the surrounding area. It would provide an
enhanced and improved sports facility that would not cause any significant harm to the
amenity of neighbouring residents, highway safety, ecology or trees. It is, therefore,
considered that the development accords with policies V2, HW1, HW2, BNE1, BNE9,
BNE10 and BNE11 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026. Consequently, it is
recommended that the application is approved.
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
Ref:
21/00601/CB3
Decision: PCO
Decision Date: Pending
Description: Provision of 9no. car parking spaces for nos. 119 to 135 Chorley Road and
erection of galvanised mild steel railings (following demolition of storage building)
Suggested conditions
1. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.
2. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
below:

Agenda Page 78

Agenda Item 3f

Title
Plan Ref
Received On
Site Location Plan
P001
14 May 2021
Existing Playing Fields Plan
P002
14 May 2021
Proposed Playing Fields Plan
P003 Rev.A
14 May 2021
Existing Site Plan
P004
14 May 2021
Proposed Site Plan
P005 Rev.A
14 May 2021
Proposed Floor Plan
P006 Rev.A
14 May 2021
Proposed Elevations and Sections
P007
14 May 2021
Proposed/Existing Site Section
P008
14 May 2021
Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
3. The external facing materials, detailed on the approved plans, shall be used and no others
substituted unless alternatives are first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, when the development shall then be carried out in accordance with the alternatives
approved.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality.
4. Prior to the first use of the premises hereby approved, plans and particulars showing the
provision to be made for the storage and disposal of refuse and recycling receptacles, shall be
submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority. Such provision as is
agreed shall be implemented concurrently with the development and thereafter retained. No part
of the development shall be occupied until the agreed provision is completed and made
available for use.
Reason: In order that the bin storage is of an acceptable design.
5. A scheme for the landscaping of the development shall be submitted prior to the first use of
the premises hereby approved. These details shall include all existing trees and hedgerows on
the land; detail any to be retained, together with measures for their protection in the course of
development; indicate the types and numbers of trees and any shrubs to be planted, their
distribution on site, and those areas to be seeded, paved or hard landscaped. The scheme
should include a landscaping/habitat management plan. Landscaping proposals should
comprise only native plant communities appropriate to the natural area.
All hard and soft landscape works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details
within the first planting and seeding seasons following the occupation of any buildings or the
completion of the development, whichever is the sooner, and any trees or plants which within a
period of 5 years from the completion of the development die, are removed or become seriously
damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size
and species.
Reason: To ensure that a satisfactory landscaping scheme for the development is carried out to
mitigate the impact of the development and secure a high quality design.
6. Prior to the first use of the premises hereby approved details of how sustainable modes of
transport can be promoted alongside details of car parking facilities in the area for people using
the premises, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
development thereafter shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details unless
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: To promote the use of sustainable modes of transport, alongside encouraging the use
of car parking facilities for those who would drive to the site.
7. No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a Construction
Parking and Deliveries Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, the local
planning authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to throughout the construction
period. The Statement shall provide for:
i.
the parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors
ii.
hours of operation (including deliveries) during construction
iii.
loading and unloading of plant and materials

Agenda Page 79

iv.

Agenda Item 3f

storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development

Reason: In the interests of highway safety and to protect the amenities of the nearby residents.
8. No development shall commence until a surface water drainage scheme has been submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The drainage scheme must include:
(i) An investigation of the hierarchy of drainage options in the National Planning Practice
Guidance (or any subsequent amendment thereof). This investigation shall include evidence of
an assessment of ground conditions and the potential for infiltration of surface water;
(ii) A restricted rate of discharge of surface water agreed with the local planning authority (if it is
agreed that infiltration is discounted by the investigations); and
(iii) A timetable for its implementation.
The approved scheme shall also be in accordance with the Non-Statutory Technical Standards
for Sustainable Drainage Systems (March 2015) or any subsequent replacement national
standards.
The development hereby permitted shall be carried out only in accordance with the approved
drainage scheme.
Reason: To promote sustainable development, secure proper drainage and to manage the risk
of flooding and pollution.
9. Foul and surface water shall be drained on separate systems.
Reason: To secure proper drainage and to manage the risk of flooding and pollution.
10. All demolition works shall be carried out under the supervision of a suitably licensed
ecologist or ecological clerk of works.
Reason: To ensure that the demolition works are not detrimental to protected species.
11. Prior to the construction of the building hereby approved a Biodiversity Enhancement
Strategy shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
approved Strategy shall be implemented in full prior to the first use of the premises hereby
approved, and retained thereafter.
Reason: To ensure that the proposals enhance biodiversity.
12. The path leading from the building to the bin store shall be constructed from a porous
material and its construction shall utilise a no dig methodology. All works within the root
protections zones of trees shall also accord with British Standard 5837:2012 or any subsequent
amendment to the British Standards.
Reason: To safeguard the health and appearance of the trees being retained.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 3f
Agenda Page 81

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 83 Agenda Item 3f

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item
21/00607/CB3

Demolition of existing buildings and erection
of a sports changing facility building with
associated disabled parking space and
works

Agenda Page 84 Agenda Item 3f

King Georges Field

Location Plan

Agenda Page 85 Agenda Item 3f

Aerial photo

Agenda Page 86 Agenda Item 3f

Satellite Image 2020

Agenda Page 87 Agenda Item 3f

Existing Site Plan

Agenda Page 88 Agenda Item 3f

Proposed Site Plan

Agenda Page 89 Agenda Item 3f

Proposed Floor Plan

Agenda Page 90 Agenda Item 3f

Proposed Elevations / Sections

Agenda Page 91 Agenda Item 3f

Existing & Proposed Site Sections

Agenda Page 92 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 93 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 94 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 95 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 96 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 97 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 98 Agenda Item 3f

Site photo – June 2021

Agenda Page 99 Agenda Item 3f

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 101

Agenda Item 3g

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00737/FULHH
Validation Date: 11 June 2021
Ward: Coppull
Type of Application: Householder Application

Proposal: Erection of detached car port/workshop (retrospective) (resubmission of
planning application ref: 21/002384/FULHH)
Location: Ro-Mar Church Fold Coppull Chorley PR7 4LZ
Case Officer: Chris Smith

Applicant: Mr Chris Bury
Agent: Mr Tony Lang, RT Design

Consultation expiry: 15 July 2021
Decision due by: 12 August 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that the application is refused for the following reasons:
1. The development is inappropriate development in the Green Belt and is harmful by
definition. The applicant has not demonstrated that there are very special circumstances
which would outweigh the harm to the Green Belt and the development is, therefore,
contrary to the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework.
2. The development is an incongruous and discordant feature within the streetscene and
fails to respect the character of the immediate locality. The development is, therefore,
contrary to policy BNE1 of the Local Plan 2012-2026 and the Council's Householder Design
Guidance Supplementary Planning Document.
SITE DESCRIPTION
2. The application site is located in the Green Belt directly to the east of the settlement
boundary of Coppull. The existing property sits within a row of 3no. detached properties
located to the south of Church Fold. Immediately to the west is Coppull Parish Church and
to the east is open land.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
3. The application seeks planning permission retrospectively for a detached car port/workshop.
It is a resubmission of planning application 21/00384/FULHH which was refused by the
th
Council on 24 May 2021 for the same reasons as detailed above.
4. The application is as per the previous application; however, the application is accompanied
by a planning statement setting out why the applicant considers that there are very special
circumstances which would outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason of
inappropriateness.

Agenda Page 102

Agenda Item 3g

REPRESENTATIONS
5. No representations have been received.
CONSULTATIONS
6. Coppull Parish Council – Have stated that they would like to remain neutral with regards to
the proposed development.
Applicant’s case in support of the application
7. The area to the front and side of the house has been used as hardstanding for many years
for the parking of vehicles.
8. The boundary between this area and the access road has a 1.8m high timber clad fence.
9. The area to the side of the property is restricted in width due to a drain channel that runs
through a culvert at the front of the property (under the hardstanding) and there is an open
stream to the side boundary of the property meaning there isn’t sufficient space to build the
car port to the side of the property.
10. The existing property is a bungalow and an extension to the side of the house for a car port
would have an eaves height that would not be compatible with the eaves height of the
house.
11. The neighbouring Church has no objections to the proposal and as part of the scheme the
applicant had agreed to make good the existing stone boundary wall between his property
and the graveyard to the rear of the church.
12. The development preserves the openness of the Green Belt and it would have little impact
due to the existing timber fence which bounds with the road.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Principle of the development in the Green Belt
13. National guidance on Green Belt is contained in Chapter 13 of the National Planning Policy
Framework (the Framework) which states:
137. The Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the
essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.
138. Green Belt serves five purposes:
a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and other urban
land.
147. Inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not
be approved except in very special circumstances.
148. When considering any planning application, local planning authorities should ensure
that substantial weight is given to any harm to the Green Belt. ‘Very special circumstances’
will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and
any other harm resulting from the proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.

Agenda Page 103

Agenda Item 3g

149. A local planning authority should regard the construction of new buildings as
inappropriate in the Green Belt. Exceptions to this are:
a) buildings for agriculture and forestry;
b) the provision of appropriate facilities (in connection with the existing use of land or a
change of use) for outdoor sport, outdoor recreation, cemeteries and burial grounds and
allotments; as long as the facilities preserve the openness of the Green Belt and do not
conflict with the purposes of including land within it;
c) the extension or alteration of a building provided that it does not result in disproportionate
additions over and above the size of the original building;
d) the replacement of a building, provided the new building is in the same use and not
materially larger than the one it replaces;
e) limited infilling in villages;
f) limited affordable housing for local community needs under policies set out in the
development plan (including policies for rural exception sites); and
g) limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously developed land,
whether redundant or in continuing use (excluding temporary buildings), which would:
‒ not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or
‒ not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt, where the development
would re-use previously developed land and contribute to meeting an identified
14. The Householder Design Guidance SPD states that it is unlikely that planning permission
will be forthcoming for more than equivalent of a double garage, a small shed, and a small
greenhouse on a single dwelling in the countryside.
15. It is not considered that the proposed development would fall within the list of exceptions to
inappropriate development detailed at paragraph 149 of the Framework. It is noted,
however, that the planning statement submitted with the application states that the proposed
development would fall within the exception detailed at bullet point (g) of paragraph 149 of
the Framework for the limited infilling or the partial or complete redevelopment of previously
developed land. However, the application site is within a residential garden, in an area that
is relatively built-up with neighbouring properties to the east and a Church to the west and,
therefore, the site does not fall within the Framework’s definition of previously developed
land which excludes land in built-up areas such as residential gardens.
16. The development does not, therefore, fall within the list of exceptions to inappropriate
development detailed at paragraph 145 of the Framework. The development must,
therefore, be considered inappropriate, which is harmful by definition, and to which
substantial weight must be attached. Such development should not be approved except in
‘Very Special Circumstances’, which will not exist unless the potential harm to the Green
Belt by reason of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the proposal, is
clearly outweighed by other considerations.
17. The Council does, however, take a pragmatic approach to the development of domestic
outbuildings within a residential curtilage and makes provision for the equivalent of a double
garage, a small shed, and a small greenhouse on a single dwelling in the countryside
through the Householder Design Guidance Supplementary Planning Document.
18. However, the development measures approximately 9m by 9m and is a large structure
located within a relatively small front garden. Consequently, it is considered that it exceeds
what can be considered equivalent of a double garage, a small shed, and a small
greenhouse.
19. The applicant’s agent has advanced several arguments to set out a case in support of the
development in the Green Belt which are summarised above. It is not considered that these
arguments are individually or collectively sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green belt
such that very special circumstances exist. Consequently, it is not considered that there are
any very special circumstances, which would outweigh the harm to the Green Belt by reason

Agenda Page 104

Agenda Item 3g

of inappropriateness. It is not considered that the principle of the proposed development is
an acceptable one and for this reason it is recommended that the application be refused.
Impact on the character and appearance of the locality
20. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.
21. The Householder Design Guidance states that outbuildings should generally be sited in an
inconspicuous position and should be commensurate in scale and function to the original
property. Ideally garages should not conflict with any established building lines and should
be set back from the main building line, with space for car parking, and preferably turning in
front of the garage.
22. The immediate locality is of rural character with Church Fold being a narrow highway which
to the west of the site is viewed more as a curving narrow country lane rather than a
residential cul-de-sac. However, the immediate streetscene does have some uniformity with
regards to building lines and layouts as the host property sits in line with a row of 3no.
detached properties. The development is set well forward of this established building line
and due to its size, scale, massing, and close proximity to site boundaries delineated by
fencing of lower height the development is highly visible within the adjacent streetscene.
Consequently, the development appears as a highly visible, poorly designed, visually
incongruous and discordant feature within the streetscene which fails to respect the
character of the immediate locality and for this reason it is recommend that the application is
refused.
Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
23. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 - 2026 outlines the design criteria for new
development, stating that a proposal should not have a significant detrimental impact on the
streetscene by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.
24. The Householder Design Guidance stipulates that care must be taken to ensure that any
outbuildings and other structures do not lead to an unacceptable level of overshadowing of
neighbouring properties, disturbance or loss of privacy.
25. The development is located approximately 26m to the south west of the nearest
neighbouring residential property at Chapel House Farm and, therefore, any impacts on
neighbouring amenity are negligible.
CONCLUSION
26. The development does not comply with any of the exceptions of paragraph 149 of the
Framework. It does, therefore, constitute inappropriate development in the Green Belt which
is harmful by definition. In addition, the development is an incongruous and discordant
feature within the streetscene which fails to respect the character of the immediate locality.
The development is, therefore, contrary to the Framework, policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local
Plan 2012 – 2026 and The Householder Design Guidance Supplementary Planning
Document.
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.

Agenda Page 105

Agenda Item 3g

RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
Ref:
81/00473/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Description: Garage/store/joiners workshop

Decision Date: 30 June 1981

Ref:
90/00357/FUL
Decision: PERFPP
Description: First floor bedroom extension

Decision Date: 22 June 1990

Ref:
03/00408/FUL
Decision: PERFPP
Decision Date: 12 June 2003
Description: Single Storey side extension, conversion of integral garage to living area
accommodation and retrospective application for rear conservatory
Ref:
08/01015/FUL
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 16 December 2008
Description: Retrospective application for 5 No. air conditioning units
Ref:
21/00384/FULHH
Decision: REFFPP
Decision Date: 24 May 2021
Description: Erection of detached car port/workshop (retrospective)

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 107

Agenda Item 3g

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 109 Agenda Item 3g

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item 3g
21/00737/FULHH

Erection of detached car port/workshop (retrospective)
(resubmission of planning application ref:
21/00384/FULHH)

Agenda Page 110 Agenda Item 3g

Ro-Mar, Church Fold, Coppull, Chorley, PR7 4LZ

Location plan

Agenda Page 111 Agenda Item 3g

Block plan, elevations and layout

Agenda Page 112 Agenda Item 3g

Site photo from the east along
Church Fold

Agenda Page 113 Agenda Item 3g

Photo from west of site

Agenda Page 114 Agenda Item 3g

Site photo

Agenda Page 115 Agenda Item 3g

Site photo

Agenda Page 116 Agenda Item 3g

Agenda Page 117

Agenda Item 3h

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00281/FULHH
Validation Date: 9 March 2021
Ward: Eccleston, Heskin And Charnock Richard
Type of Application: Householder Application

Proposal: Alterations to existing detached garage including increasing height of walls,
raising of ridge height, extension to front and conversion to habitable accommodation,
single storey front extension, single storey rear extension with balcony above, and
associated external alterations
Location: 12 Langton Close Eccleston Chorley PR7 5UU
Case Officer: Eleanor McCleary
Authorising Officer: Adele Hayes

Applicant: Mrs Adele Headley
Agent: Mr Douglas Philip Bertram, D.P.Bertram.Building & Planning Solutions

Consultation expiry: 25 June 2021
Decision due by: 4 May 2021 (Extension of time agreed)

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.
2. Members are asked to note that Councillor Alan Whittaker have requested that the
application is heard at Committee.
SITE DESCRIPTION
3. The application site is located within the settlement of Eccleston. The existing property is a
detached dwellinghouse with a detached garage and is located at the head of a cul-de-sac.
There is a garden to the rear, beyond which there is open land.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
4. Planning permission is sought for:
 alterations to the existing detached garage including increasing the height of the
walls, raising of the ridge height, extension to the front and conversion to habitable
accommodation;
 a single storey front extension;
 a single storey rear extension with balcony above; and
 associated external alterations
REPRESENTATIONS
5.

Representations have been received from 3no. neighbours citing the following grounds of
objection:

Agenda Page 118

Agenda Item 3h



Adverse effect on the visual amenity of a neighbouring property through overlooking,
loss of privacy, shadowing and reduction of daylight to certain rooms at the rear.



Impact on amenity of neighbouring properties in terms of overshadowing and loss of
light.



Description is misleading – described as rear single storey extension but it is clear that
to achieve the proposed dimensions on the first floor balcony, the first floor will also
have to be extended to the same degree as the ground floor extension, thus making this
a two storey extension as opposed to a single storey extension detailed.



Adverse effect on the residential amenity of neighbours due to the impact on highway
safety and the convenience of road users in what is a small, congested cul-de-sac. This
will also have an impact on means of access and available car parking, which will be
especially evident when additional vehicles visit the premises.



Time frame for works proposed – work would greatly affect ability to sleep during the
day (shift worker) due to the noise of the work taking place close to a neighbour’s
bedroom.



1no. neighbour has requested that if officers are mindful to approve, they would
appreciate the opportunity to address the committee and voice their concerns in relation
to the proposed alterations prior to any decisions being finalised.



1no. neighbour is not opposed to the planned alterations to the existing garage as they
feel that the impact on surrounding neighbours including themselves will be to a much
lesser extent.

6. Following representations made, amended plans were submitted which extended the length
of the balcony screening, and provided additional measurements on plan. Further
representations were received from 2no. neighbours:


Amended plans indicate that the total length of the dining room wall is 3950cm on the
existing footprint of the property which is also the same for the balcony which is shown
as 120cm. The new plan clearly shows a larger balcony, but the measurements are not
shown indicating how much longer the downstairs wall will be when it is extended. If, as
anticipated, the walls and balcony extend further the same objections remain because, it
is felt that this part of the proposed works will have a detrimental impact on natural light
to both upstairs and downstairs of their home and will effect enjoyment of their property



Concern raised regarding conversion of, and extension to, the garage and impact it
could have on access to neighbouring driveways.



Safety of children playing due to additional vehicle movements and house being
adjacent to a children’s play area.

CONSULTATIONS
7. Canal & River Trust – Have stated that this application falls outside the notified area for its
application scale.
8. Chorley Council Waste & Contaminated Land Officer – Have confirmed that they have no
comments.
9. Eccleston Parish Council – Have commented that concerns have been raised by a
neighbour regarding potential overlooking of rear rooms.

Agenda Page 119

Agenda Item 3h

PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Design and impact on the dwelling and streetscene
10. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free standing
structures, provided that the proposal does not have a significantly detrimental impact on the
surrounding area by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building to plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, orientation and use of materials.
11. Policy HS5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 stipulates that the proposed extension
respects the existing house and the surrounding buildings in terms of scale, size, design and
facing materials, without innovative and original design features being stifled.
12. The Householder Design Guidance SPD requires that extensions are subservient to the
existing dwelling and respect the scale, character, proportions of the existing dwelling and
surrounding area. In particular the SPD states that the installation of balconies and terraces
are almost always problematic and, in many cases, unacceptable. Incorporation of some
form of privacy screen could be used with great care, and ideally should be designed into
the fabric of an extension rather than be added as an afterthought. In addition, the SPD
states that front extensions may be acceptable in streets where there is no distinct building
line or form, in a street with a wide variety of architectural styles.
13. The existing detached garage would be extended to the front, and the walls and ridge height raised
before conversion to habitable accommodation. The proposed alterations would be suitably
domestic in appearance and whilst the existing garage door would be removed and a door and
windows introduced to the front elevation, the resultant structure would still retain an appropriate
degree of subservience to the existing dwelling.
14. The proposed extension to the front would result in the existing garage being located further
forward, however it would still retain a reasonable set back from the public highway and front
elevation of the dwellinghouse, and would not, therefore, appear overly prominent in the
streetscene.
15. The proposed single storey front and rear extensions would respect the existing property
and the surrounding buildings in terms of the scale, size, design and facing materials. Views
of the proposed rear extension would be largely obscured from public vantage points.
Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
16. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free-standing
structures, provided that, the development would not cause harm to any neighbouring
property by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing or by creating overbearing impacts.
17. Policy HS5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that there should be no
unacceptable adverse effect on the amenity of neighbouring properties through overlooking,
loss of privacy or reduction of daylight.
18. The Householder Design Guidance SPD seeks to ensure that property extensions have a
satisfactory relationship with existing neighbouring buildings, do not have overbearing
impacts on adjacent properties and amenity areas and do not lead to the excessive loss of
daylight or overshadowing of habitable rooms and amenity spaces of adjacent properties.
Furthermore, it asserts that extensions should be located, and windows orientated, to
prevent direct overlooking of habitable rooms or private amenity space that belongs to
nearby properties. In particular the SPD states that first floor and two storey extensions
should not project beyond a ‘45- degree’ guideline drawn on plan from the near edge of the
closest ground floor habitable room window in an adjoining/affected property and single
storey extension should not project further than 3m beyond the same line. The SPD also

Agenda Page 120

Agenda Item 3h

states that balconies or terraces which lead to an unacceptable level of overlooking or are
visually intrusive are unacceptable.
19. Objections have been received from the occupiers of adjacent properties, no.11 Langton
Close, and no.12A Langton Close. Both these neighbouring occupiers are concerned that
the proposed development would result in an adverse impact on their amenity through
overlooking, loss of privacy, shadowing and reduction of daylight.
20. The orientation of the application property is such that the proposed single storey rear
extension with balcony above would be built to its western facing rear elevation, adjacent to
the boundary with no.11 Langton Close, which is located to the south. This neighbouring
property has a single storey rear extension (planning permission ref 15/00136/FUL) which
projects from its west facing rear elevation, and which is built in proximity to its northern
boundary that is shared with the application property. The neighbouring occupier is
concerned that the proposal would have an adverse impact on light to the rear windows
which are in proximity to the proposed extension.
21. In order to protect the amenity of neighbouring occupiers, Chorley Council’s Householder
Design Guidance Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) states that first floor and two
storey rear extensions should not project beyond a 45 degree line drawn from the near edge
of the closest ground floor rear facing window to a habitable room in a neighbouring
dwelling. Given that the proposed single storey rear extension would contain a balcony at
first floor it is considered appropriate to apply the guideline for first floor and two storey rear
extensions.
22. The proposed extension would not project beyond a 45 degree line drawn from the near
edge of the closest ground floor rear facing window in a habitable room in no.11 Langton
Close. Measurement has been taken from the rear facing windows in the single storey rear
extension at this property. The Council uses the ’45-degree’ guideline to assess the impact
of proposed extensions with the purpose of maintaining satisfactory relationships between
existing buildings and proposed extensions, avoiding overbearing impacts on adjacent
properties and amenity areas, and preventing excessive loss of daylight or overshadowing
of habitable rooms and amenity spaces of adjacent properties. Whilst it is acknowledged
that there would be some loss of ambient light to the first floor windows, it is considered, on
balance, that the orientation of the extension in relation to the neighbouring property would
mean that the resultant overshadowing would not be so significant as to warrant refusal of
the application.
23. Privacy would be maintained by the proposed 1.5m high privacy screen and 0.3m wall to the
balcony, and with the extension containing a blank side elevation facing onto the common
boundary, it is considered that there would be no unacceptable adverse impact on the
amenity of the neighbouring occupier at no.11 Langton Close. A suitably worded condition is
recommended.
24. The existing detached garage would be altered and extended to provide habitable
accommodation following its conversion. The existing detached garage is located to the
south of nos. 12A and 12B Langton Close. Whilst it is acknowledged that the proposed
alterations to the garage would introduce a greater degree of massing to the boundary with
these neighbouring properties, the existing separation distance would remain and, due to
the orientation on site, the proposed development would not directly face onto the front
elevation of these neighbouring properties. It is considered, therefore, that there would be no
unacceptable adverse impact from overshadowing of the front of these neighbouring
dwellinghouses. Furthermore, whilst a rooflight is proposed to the side elevation facing onto
nos. 12A and 12B Langton Close, it is not considered that this would adversely impact
amenity by virtue of overlooking. In addition, a door and 2no.windows would be introduced
to the front elevation, and a patio door would be installed to the rear. The front facing door
and windows would not directly overlook any neighbouring property, and with open land to
the rear, it is considered that the resultant relationships would be acceptable.

Agenda Page 121

Agenda Item 3h

25. The single storey front extension would replace an existing porch, and a small, high level,
window would be installed in the front elevation. Given that the proposed single storey front
extension would have an acceptable relationship with neighbouring properties.
26. With no neighbouring properties located directly to the rear and with a separation distance of
more than 7m, it is considered that the proposal would accord with policy.
Highway safety
27. Policy HS5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that permission will be granted
provided that the proposal does not have an unacceptable adverse effect on highway safety
and policy ST4 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and its associated appendix sets out
parking standards based on bedroom numbers of a property.
28. The Householder Design Guidance SPD states that off-street parking should be provided at
a ratio of 2 spaces for a two or three bed dwelling, and 3 spaces for a larger property,
including garages.
29. Following conversion of, and extension to, the existing detached garage it would serve as
habitable accommodation. Objections have been received from the occupiers of 2no.
neighbouring properties who are concerned that the proposed development would have an
adverse impact on highway safety and parking.
30. Whilst the proposed development would result in the loss of 2no. garage parking spaces, the
proposed parking layout demonstrates that in-curtilage parking would be provided for 3no.
vehicles. This is in accordance with policy.
31. Whilst the safety of children playing is of concern, it is noted that the proposed development
is located at the head of a cul-de-sac where there is limited passing traffic, and it is expected
there would be low traffic speeds.
Other issues
32. Concerns about the parking of construction vehicles and construction hours are noted but
given the size and scale of the proposed development it is not considered necessary to
require a construction management plan in this instance.
CONCLUSION
33. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the existing dwelling or the surrounding area, nor would it
cause any significant harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents or highway safety. It is,
therefore, considered that the development accords with policy HS5 of the Chorley Local
Plan 2012 – 2026 and the Householder Design Guidance SPD. Consequently, it is
recommended that the application is approved.
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the Central
Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
Ref:
93/00114/FUL
Decision: PERFPP
Decision Date: 10 July 1998
Description: Erection of 22 dwellings with associated engineering works

Agenda Page 122

Agenda Item 3h

Suggested conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
below:
Title
Location Plan
Site Plan
Proposed Layout of Parking Areas
Proposed Elevations
Existing & Proposed Footprint of Property
Proposed Elevations
Proposed Ground Floor Layout

Plan Ref
N/A
N/A
DPB/DEH/20/07
DPB/DEH/20/05 C
DPB/DEH/20/16
DPB/EH/20/04
DPB/EH/20/06 A

Received On
9 March 2021
9 March 2021
16 April 2021
10 May 2021
10 May 2021
9 March 2021
16 April 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.
2. All external facing materials of the development hereby permitted shall match in colour, form
and texture to those specified on the application form received 9 March 2021 and no others
substituted unless alternatives are first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, when the development shall then be carried out in accordance with the alternatives
approved.
Reason: In the interests of the visual amenity of the area in general and the existing building in
particular.
3. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.
4. Before the balcony hereby approved is brought into use the 1.5m high obscurely glazed
privacy screens as shown on plan reference DPB/DEH/20/05 C shall be installed on the south
and west facing elevations of the balcony. The obscurely glazed privacy screens shall be to at
least Level 5 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent as may be agreed in writing
by the local planning authority and it shall be retained at all times thereafter.
Reason: In the interests of the privacy of occupiers of neighbouring property.

Agenda Page 123

Agenda Item 3h

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 125 Agenda Item 3h

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item 3?
21/00281/FULHH

Alterations to existing detached garage including increasing
height of walls, raising of ridge height, extension to front
and conversion to habitable accommodation, single storey
front extension, single storey rear extension with balcony
above, and associated external alterations

Agenda Page 126 Agenda Item 3h

12 Langton Close, Eccleston

Location plan

Agenda Page 127 Agenda Item 3h

Aerial Imagery

Agenda Page 128 Agenda Item 3h

Application
Site

Existing & Proposed Ground Floor Footprints

Agenda Page 129 Agenda Item 3h

Proposed elevations (1)

Agenda Page 130 Agenda Item 3h

Proposed elevations (2)

Agenda Page 131 Agenda Item 3h

Proposed floor plan

Agenda Page 132 Agenda Item 3h

Proposed parking plan

Agenda Page 133 Agenda Item 3h

Photo 1 – Street view (front) (1)

Agenda Page 134 Agenda Item 3h

Application site

Photo 2 – Street view (front) (2)

Agenda Page 135 Agenda Item 3h

Application site

Photo 3 – Rear elevation (1)

Agenda Page 136 Agenda Item 3h

Photo 2 – Rear elevation (2)

Agenda Page 137 Agenda Item 3h

Photo 3 – Rear elevation (3)

Agenda Page 138 Agenda Item 3h

Photo 4 – View to no.11 Langton Close (1)

Agenda Page 139 Agenda Item 3h

Photo 5 – View from no.11 Langton Close (2)

Agenda Page 140 Agenda Item 3h

Agenda Page 141

Agenda Item 3i

APPLICATION REPORT – 21/00624/FULHH
Validation Date: 18 May 2021
Ward: Chorley North East
Type of Application: Householder Application

Proposal: Single storey side and rear extensions and conversion of part of garage to
habitable accommodation.
Location: 3 Tormore Close Heapey Chorley PR6 9BP
Case Officer: Mrs Hannah Roper

Applicant: Mr Adam Crompton
Agent: Mr Michael Beech, BPD Architecture

Consultation expiry: 8 July 2021
Decision due by: 13 July 2021

RECOMMENDATION
1. It is recommended that planning permission is granted subject to conditions.
SITE DESCRIPTION
2. The application relates to a detached property that is the first dwelling on a short cul de sac,
Tormore Close, in Heapey. No.2 Tormore Close faces the corner of Tormore Close and
Blackbrook Close with the rear elevation facing the side elevation of number 3, albeit slightly
angled away.
3. The application property is ‘L’ shaped with a double garage projecting towards the front of the
dwelling accessed at 90 degrees to the front door. The property has a drive to the front and a
garden to the rear that rises to the north. A patio area lies to the side/rear of the property
adjacent to the boundary with no.2. A 2m high boundary fence lies along the common
boundary with no.2 having some conifers/foliage adjacent to this boundary.
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT
4. The application seeks planning permission for a single storey side extension, following the
line of the existing attached garage that projects further towards the west than the main part
of the dwelling. It would have a width of 2.4m and a length of 9.1m to tie in with the existing
rear elevation of the property. The roof would be hipped with an eaves height of 2.3m and a
ridge height of 3.5m.
5. A single storey rear extension is also proposed adjacent to no.4 Tormore Close that project
1.1m and would have a width of 2.9m. It would have a mono pitched roof of eaves height of
2.3m and a ridge height of 3.4m.
6. The application also seeks planning permission to convert one half of the existing double
garage into habitable accommodation comprising of a WC and an office. An obscurely glazed

Agenda Page 142

Agenda Item 3i

window would be inserted into the side elevation and a window would replace the existing
garage door.
REPRESENTATIONS
7. Representations have been received from the occupiers of neighbouring property at no.2
Tormore Close citing the following grounds of objection:
 The plan and forms are inaccurate and deficient
 Rooflights shown in floorplans but not elevations
 No details of the sewer manhole
 Have answered no to trees and hedges on the form
 No details in regard to Local Authority Employee
 No signature
 There are trees along the boundary
 The main garden and house of number 2 are dominated by the side of number 3 and the
trees provide relief
 The proposal would result in a change in view
 House value would be reduced
 The extension would be ‘in my face’.
 The roots of the trees would likely be cut
 Excavation will likely be required to be deep give extensions recently completed in the
locality
 The relocation of the manhole would likely impact on trees
 Water drains are likely to be impacted
 Currently windows are set back from the fence. The proposed windows would have the
light blocked by the trees
 There is potential for high hedge legislation to be bought into force
 The toilet will be close to the to the boundary and will result in noise intrusion.
CONSULTATIONS
8. Lancashire County Council Highway Services – Have no objection.
9. Heapey Parish Council – No comments have been received.
10. CIL Officers – Comment that the proposal is not CIL liable.
11. Council’s Tree Officer – Advises that there may be some impact on roots but it would not be
significant. In addition they advise that a Tree Survey would not be justified but has
suggested a condition requiring adherence to British Standards for protection.
PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS
Design and impact on the dwelling and streetscene
12. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 - 2026 outlines the design criteria for new
development, stating that a proposal should not have a significant detrimental impact on the
streetscene by virtue of its density, siting, layout, building plot ratio, height, scale and
massing, design, materials orientation, use of materials.
13. Policy HS5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 stipulates that the proposed extension
respects the existing house and the surrounding buildings in terms of scale, size, design and
facing materials, without innovative and original design features being stifled.
14.The Householder Design Guidance SPD requires that extensions are subservient to the
existing dwelling and respect the scale, character, proportions of the existing dwelling and
surrounding area.

Agenda Page 143

Agenda Item 3i

14. The proposed extensions would be located to the rear of the property and as such would not
be visible within the streetscene. Wider views would be screened by the extended property at
no. 2 Tormore Close and its outbuilding.
15. From the frontage the conversion of the garage would be visible, with the garage door being
replaced by a window. Matching material could be secured by condition and as such it is not
considered that any part of the proposal would be out of keeping with the existing property,
streetscene or surrounding locality.
Impact on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers
16. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free-standing
structures, provided that, the development would not cause harm to any neighbouring
property by virtue of overlooking, overshadowing or overbearing.
17. Policy HS5 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that there should be no
unacceptable adverse effect on the amenity of neighbouring properties through overlooking,
loss of privacy or reduction of daylight.
18. The Householder Design Guidance SPD seeks to ensure that property extensions have a
satisfactory relationship with existing neighbouring buildings, do not have overbearing
impacts on adjacent properties and amenity areas and do not lead to the excessive loss of
daylight or overshadowing of habitable rooms and amenity spaces of adjacent properties.
Furthermore, it asserts that extensions should be located, and windows orientated, to prevent
direct overlooking of habitable rooms or private amenity space that belongs to nearby
properties. In particular, the SPD states that single storey extensions shall not project further
than 3 metres beyond a ‘45-degree’ guideline drawn on plan from the near edge of the
closest ground floor habitable room window on an adjoining/affected property.
18. With regard to the proposed extension adjacent to no.4, this is modest in size and scale.
No.4 has no windows in the gable end and the proposed extension would not project beyond
the rear elevation of this dwelling. As such, there would be no detrimental impact as a result
of the proposal.
19. With regard to no.2 Tormore Close, the proposed side extension would bring the side
elevation closer to the common boundary with this property. As existing, the property already
has side facing habitable room windows, however they are set back from the boundary. The
proposed extension would introduce two windows in the side elevation. These would be
located approximately 0.5m from the common boundary and would look directly onto the
boundary fence. Amendments have been made to the proposed scheme such that these
windows do not protrude higher than 2m above ground level and as such would not protrude
above the boundary fence and due to the close proximity to the boundary treatment would
not permit views up and over it. As such it is considered that the proposed scheme would not
result in a significant loss of privacy for the occupiers of no.2 or an overbearing impact given
the boundary treatment, the height of the proposed extension, the distance to the rear
elevation and the offset nature of the dwellings. As such the proposal is considered to be
acceptable in respect of amenity considerations.
Impact on trees
20. Policy BNE10 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that proposals which would
result in the loss of trees and/or involve inappropriate works to trees which contribute
positively to the character of the landscape, a building, a settlement or the setting thereof will
not be permitted. Replacement planting will be required where it is considered that the benefit
of development outweighs the loss of some of the trees or hedgerows.
21. A number of conifers are located within the garden of no.2 Tormore Close adjacent to the
common boundary. Due to concerns raised regarding these trees by the neighbour the
Council’s Tree Officer has visited the site. He considers that there would only be minimal

Agenda Page 144

Agenda Item 3i

impact on these trees as a result of the proposal and that requesting a Tree Survey would not
be justifiable in this instance. He has however requested a condition requiring that they are
protected in accordance with British Standards during the construction of the extension.
Highway safety
22. Policy BNE1 of the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 states that planning permission will be
granted for new development, including extensions, conversions and free-standing
structures, provided that (amongst other things) that the residual cumulative highways impact
of the development is not severe and it would not prejudice highway safety, pedestrian
safety, and the free flow of traffic.
23. The proposal involves the conversion of part of the existing garage into habitable space
comprising an office and a WC.
24. LCC Highways have raised no concerns with regard to highway safety as a result of the
proposal but have requested that amenity issues as a result of the conversion are considered
as the remaining garage space would be of insufficient size to be classed as a parking space
resulting in a deficiency of spaces compared to standards set out in the Chorley Local Plan..
25. The proposal involves conversion of half of the existing double garage, which has a wall
partially through the centre. A single garage should have dimensions of 6m x 3m to
accommodate a modern car. On this basis and given the wall between the spaces, then
neither space within the garage would be of sufficient size to be classed as a parking space
on the basis of current standards.
26. The driveway of the property would remain unaltered and there would be no increase in the
number of bedrooms at the dwelling. As such the loss of the garage is considered to be
acceptable. A condition requiring the retention of the remaining garage is recommended.
CONCLUSION
27. The proposed development would not have an unacceptable adverse impact on the
character and appearance of the existing dwelling or the surrounding area, nor would it cause
any significant harm to the amenity of neighbouring residents, trees or highway safety. It is,
therefore, considered that the development accords with policies BNE1, BNE10 and HS5 of
the Chorley Local Plan 2012 – 2026 and the Householder Design Guidance SPD.
Consequently, it is recommended that the application is approved.
RELEVANT POLICIES: In accordance with s.38 (6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
(2004), the application is to be determined in accordance with the development plan (the
Central Lancashire Core Strategy, the Adopted Chorley Local Plan 2012-2026 and adopted
Supplementary Planning Guidance), unless material considerations indicate otherwise.
Consideration of the proposal has had regard to guidance contained within the National
Planning Policy Framework (the Framework) and the development plan. The specific policies/
guidance considerations are contained within the body of the report.
Suggested conditions
1. The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the approved plans
below:
Title
Proposed single storey side infill extension to
detached house
Site Location Plan
Site Block Plan

Plan Ref
1009/TCH/PL1 Rev D

Received On
22 July 2021

1009/TCH/LP
1009/TCH/BP

18 May 2021
18 May 2021

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Agenda Page 145

Agenda Item 3i

2. The proposed development must be begun not later than three years from the date of this
permission.
Reason: Required to be imposed by Section 51 of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act
2004.
3. The external facing materials, detailed on the approved plans, shall be used and no others
substituted unless alternatives are first submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning
Authority, when the development shall then be carried out in accordance with the alternatives
approved.
Reason: To ensure that the materials used are visually appropriate to the locality.
4. All trees on, or adjacent to the boundary, shall be protected in accordance with British
Standard BS 5837:2012 or any subsequent amendment to the British Standards.
Reason: To safeguard the trees on the adjacent site.
5. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015, or any subsequent Orders or statutory provision reenacting the provisions of these Orders, all garages shown on the approved plan shall be
maintained as such and shall not be converted to or used for living accommodation without the
prior written approval of the Local Planning Authority in consultation with the Highway Authority.
Reason: To ensure the provision and retention of appropriate parking levels in the interests of
residential amenity and highway safety.
6. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, with or without
modification), no additional windows or doors, other than those expressly authorised by this
permission, shall be inserted or constructed at any time in the side facing elevation of the
extended property.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining property.
7. Due to their relative height directly adjacent to the boundary with number 2 Tormore Close,
the window to the WC and any glass to the side facing door shall be fitted with obscure glass
and obscure glazing shall be retained at all times thereafter. The obscure glazing shall be to at
least Level 3 on the Pilkington Levels of Privacy, or such equivalent as may be agreed in writing
by the local planning authority.
Reason: In the interests of the privacy of occupiers of neighbouring property.
RELEVANT HISTORY OF THE SITE
There is no recent relevant planning history.

This page is intentionally left blank

3 Tormore Close, Heapey, Chorley
18

10

North

1

Weir
9

7

11

19
HIGH BANK

E
TH

Sitchstone, Brown House Lane, Higher Wheelton,
Chorley, Lancashire PR6 8HR

Tel: 01257 220510

L
DE

15

L

web: www.betterplan.co.uk
email: info@betterplan.co.uk

16

15

30

2

3
4

14

5

17

14

TO

RM

OR

E

12

CLO

SE

Project

11
8

3

9

1

3 Tormore Close, Heapey, Chorley
Lancashire PR6 9BP

2

Title

SITE LOCATION PLAN
125m

Scale: 1:1250

Site location plan - 1:1250

Agenda Item 3i

E
OOK CLOS
BLACK BR

0m

Agenda Page 147

bpd Architecture
CIAT Registered practice

Scale @ A4

Date

Ref

Drawn

1:1250

April 2021

Job 1009

MDB

Drg No

Rev

1009/TCH/LP

-

This page is intentionally left blank

10 August 2021

Agenda Page 149 Agenda Item 3i

Planning
Committee Meeting

Item 3i
21/00624/FULHH

Single storey side and rear extensions and conversion of
part of garage to habitable accommodation

Agenda Page 150 Agenda Item 3i

3 Tormore Close, Heapey

Location Plan

Agenda Page 151 Agenda Item 3i

Aerial Imagery

Agenda Page 152 Agenda Item 3i

Application Property

Site Plan - Proposed

Agenda Page 153 Agenda Item 3i

Existing and Proposed Floor Plans

Agenda Page 154 Agenda Item 3i

Existing Elevations

Agenda Page 155 Agenda Item 3i

Proposed Elevations

Agenda Page 156 Agenda Item 3i

Photo 1 – Towards the side elevation
of Number 4

Agenda Page 157 Agenda Item 3i

Photo 2 – Looking towards the location
of the side extension

Agenda Page 158 Agenda Item 3i

Photo 3 – Looking towards the rear
of Number 2

Agenda Page 159 Agenda Item 3i

Photo 4 – Looking from the rear of the
garage towards the rear boundary

Agenda Page 160 Agenda Item 3i

Photo 5 – The existing side elevation
of the property

Agenda Page 161 Agenda Item 3i

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 163

C O M M I TTE E

Agenda Item 3i

R E PO R T

REPORT OF

MEETING

DATE

Director of Planning
and Development

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

ADDENDUM

ITEM 3i - 21/00624/FULHH – 3 Tormore Close, Heapey
A further letter of objection has been received from the neighbouring property at 2 Tormore
Close reiterating previous objections including:
The proposal would result in loss of privacy, overlooking and destabilisation of trees close to
the boundary
The unusual orientation means that the application property dominates this dwelling
The barge bards and gutters would be within 500mm of the common boundary and windows
880mm which is an invasion of privacy and may result in an incentive to want trees cut down
These trees provide screening
Destabilisation of trees due to rerouting of sewer drains and manhole
The loss of the trees would affect residential amenity as they shield the garden.
The recommendation remains as per the original report.

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 165

Report of
Director Planning and
Development

Agenda Item 4

Meeting

Date

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

PLANNING APPEALS AND DECISIONS RECEIVED BETWEEN
5 JULY 2021 AND 3 AUGUST 2021
PLANNING APPEALS LODGED AND VALIDATED
Local Planning Authority Reference: 21/00186/FULHH - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/D/21/3278369
Appeal by Mrs Andrea Baxter against the delegated decision to refuse planning permission for the erection of
an outbuilding to accommodate a garage, storage space and home office.
The Longcroft Stables, Ridley Lane, Mawdesley, Ormskirk, L40 2RF.
Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 13 July 2021.
Local Planning Authority Reference: 20/01333/FULHH - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/D/21/3278344
Appeal by Adam Rudd against the delegated decision to refuse full planning permission for the erection of a
front porch, two storey rear extension to west elevation and single storey rear extension to west elevation,
single storey orangery extension to south elevation (following demolition of existing conservatory),
replacement outbuilding and site entrance gate posts.
Fern Cottage, North Road, Bretherton, Leyland, PR26 9AY.
Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 8 July 2021.
Local Planning Authority Reference: 21/00147/FULHH - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/W/21/3278198
Appeal by Mr Geoffrey Dalytse against the delegated decision to refuse full planning permission for a play
area platform with playhouse and safety balustrade (retrospective).
37 Duxbury Gardens, Chorley, PR7 3JZ.
Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 19 July 2021.
PLANNING APPEAL DECISIONS
None
PLANNING APPEALS WITHDRAWN
None

Agenda Page 166

Agenda Item 4

ENFORCEMENT APPEALS LODGED
Local Planning Authority Reference: 20/00358/COUDWL - Inspectorate Reference: APP/D2320/C/21/3279304
Appeal by Lee McGarry, Andrew Walsh and Nicola Jane Walsh against an Enforcement Notice served in
respect of the unauthorised material change of use of land and associated unauthorised operational
development and storage to facilitate that unauthorised material change of use to a permanent Racetrack and
Recreational Motorcycle Track.
Land at Chisnall House Farm, Croston Lane, Charnock Richard, Chorley, PR7 5HJ.
Inspectorate letter confirming appeal valid received 21 July 2021.
ENFORCEMENT APPEAL DECISIONS
None
ENFORCEMENT APPEALS WITHDRAWN
None
Report Author

Ext

Date

Doc ID

Adele Hayes

5228

3 August 2021

***

Agenda Page 167

Agenda Item 5

Report of

Meeting

Date

Director of Planning and
Development

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

PROPOSED CONFIRMATION CHORLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL
TPO NO.1 (HEAPEY) 2021
PURPOSE OF REPORT
1.

To consider formal confirmation of the Chorley Borough Council TPO No.1 (Heapey) 2021.

RECOMMENDATION
2.

Formal confirmation of the Order. This affords permanent as opposed to provisional legal
protection to the trees covered by the Order.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY OF REPORT
3.

Formal confirmation of the Order affords permanent as opposed to provisional legal
protection to the trees covered by the Order. Not to confirm the Order would mean allowing
the Order, and thereby the protection conferred on the trees covered by the Order to lapse.

Confidential report
Please bold as appropriate

Yes

No

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
4.

This report relates to the following Strategic Objectives:

Involving residents in improving their local
area and equality of access for all
Clean, safe and healthy communities

x

A strong local economy
An ambitious council that does more
to meet the needs of residents and
the local area

BACKGROUND
5.

The Order was made on 5 March 2021. The Order was made and served along with the
statutory notice prescribed in Regulations on all those with an interest in the land on
which the trees are situated on the 5 March 2021. The Order was made because on the
assessment of the Council’s Tree Officer the trees make a valuable contribution to the
visual amenity of the area, being prominently situated and clearly visible to the public and
that their removal would have a significant impact on the environment and its enjoyment
by the public.

6.

Two letters of objection have been received, from the residents of no.16 High Bank and
no.2 The Dingle. Both properties are located immediately adjacent to the land with the
protected trees on.

SL / 005504 / 186919

Page 1

Agenda Page 168

Agenda Item 5

Summary of Objections and Council’s Response
Chorley Council have failed to maintain the trees.
The landowner, Persimmon Homes is responsible for the land and the trees on it.
Fallen trees in the brook are causing a flood risk.
The protected trees are on land between the residential development and the
brook. None are in the brook. Fallen trees can be removed without formal
permission.
Chorley Council have created this TPO following a complaint from one member of the
public.
The council received numerous complaints about tree felling and numerous
requests to protect the trees with a new TPO.
Chorley Council have acted without impartiality and integrity.
The council has been made aware of tree felling, identified remaining trees under
threat and protected them using the legislation. It is standard practice not to inform
anyone about a new TPO until it has been served.
Residents are vulnerable to risk from the trees.
The landowner has a duty of care to adjacent residents. Tree work shown to be
necessary on safety grounds will be granted permission.
7.

The objections have been considered and it is not proposed to revoke or vary the Order.

8.

It is, therefore, now open to the Council to confirm the above Order. The effect of formally
confirming the Order will be to give permanent legal force to the Order, as opposed to
provisional force, thereby making it an offence on a permanent basis to fell or otherwise
lop, prune etc, any tree covered by the Order without first having obtained lawful
permission.

IMPLICATIONS OF REPORT
9.

This report has implications in the following areas and the relevant Directors’ comments
are included:
Finance
Human Resources
Legal
No significant implications in this
area

x

Customer Services
Equality and Diversity
Integrated Impact Assessment
required?
Policy and Communications

COMMENTS OF THE STATUTORY FINANCE OFFICER
10.

If the trees were to be lopped or pruned or chopped in breach of the order the Council
would incur staff costs in any criminal investigation and prosecution. Staff costs in the
Planning Department are also involved when dealing with applications for consent to work
to protected trees. All costs would be managed within existing budgets.

SL / 005504 / 186919

Page 2

Agenda Page 169

Agenda Item 5

COMMENTS OF THE MONITORING OFFICER
11.

The legal effect of the order and the consequences of breach are addressed within the
body of the report.

There are no background papers to this report.
Report Author

Ext

Date

Bill Whisker

01257 515642

4 August 2021

SL / 005504 / 186919

Doc ID

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 171

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Page 172

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Page 173

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Page 174

Agenda Item 5

Agenda Page 175

Agenda Item 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Page 177

C O M M I TTE E

Agenda Item 6

R E PO R T

REPORT OF

MEETING

DATE

Director of Planning
and Development

Planning Committee

10 August 2021

ADDENDUM

ITEM 3a - 20/01053/FULMAJ – Land South Of Mercer Court And East Of Westhoughton
Road, Adlington
The recommendation remains as per the original report
(1)No. further representation has been received identifying an error in the response provided
by the LLFA.
Officer comment: The original LLFA consultation response letter included reference to an
unnamed watercourse at Ringtail Road in informative 1. whilst the main body of the report
and conditions refer to Eller Brook. The LLFA were contacted for clarification and confirmed
that this was a typing error and have since provided an amended response letter.
The following consultee responses have been received:
The LLFA have provided an amended consultation response letter and have confirmed that
the reference to an unnamed watercourse at Ringtail Road was a typing error and have
provided an amended response that removes reference to an unnamed watercourse at
Ringtail Road in informative 1 and replaced this with reference to Eller Brook.
ITEM 3b - 21/00688/FUL – Whins Green Kitchen, Whins Lane, Wheelton
The application has been withdrawn from the agenda following the receipt of a late
representation and the necessity to seek legal advice prior to progressing any
determination of the application.

ITEM 3c – 21/00261/FUL – Land Adjacent to 69 Long Meadows
The recommendation remains as per the original report
The report is updated as follows:
Further representation:
A further representation has been received from 24 Longfield Manor which is summarised
below:
The shed is within the boundary of 24 Longfield Manor and was constructed 14 years ago

Agenda Page 178

Agenda Item 6

The boundary fence was constructed prior to purchase of the property in 1990 and was
replaced 3 years ago after lasting 27 years.
The boundary fence has been solely maintained by the owner of 24 Longfield Manor
The site has not been maintained since Lakeland Gardens was completed 23 years ago.
Officer comment:
The planning application form declares that the application site, as edged in red, falls within
the ownership of the applicant. The land dispute is ultimately a civil matter.
Highway safety
During the course of the application, the scheme has been amended and re-consulted with
Lancashire County Council Highways.
In their response they raise concerns in relation to third party encroachment due to the
position of an existing fence and shed at 24 Longfield Manor which they consider has
implications for the safe access and egress of the proposed parking spaces of Plot 1.
The plans do, however, show that the shed would be cut-back and the boundary realigned in
order to accommodate the driveway. This would provide a width of 3241mm for the full
length of the proposed driveway which exceeds the standard width of a parking space. It
would, therefore, allow safe access and egress. It should be noted that LCC Highways do
not raise any concerns in relation to any other matters and, therefore, the proposal is
considered to be acceptable in highways safety terms, having regard to Chorley Local Plan
policy BNE1 (d).

ITEM 3d - 21/00461/OUT - Withnell Barn Farm, Chorley Road, Withnell, Chorley, PR6
8ED
Paragraph 54 of the Report refers to a condition relating to the provision of electric vehicle
charging points, but the wording for this is not on the list of recommended conditions. The
recommended condition wording is as follows:
11. Prior to the first occupation of any dwelling, that dwelling shall be provided with an
electric vehicle charging point which shall be retained for that purpose thereafter.
Reason: To enable the use of alternative fuels for transport purposes such as electric vehicle
charging stations in order that sustainable travel alternatives needs are supported and
promoted within the development in accordance with Policy 3 of the Adopted Central
Lancashire Core Strategy.

ITEM 3i - 21/00624/FULHH – 3 Tormore Close, Heapey
A further letter of objection has been received from the neighbouring property at 2 Tormore
Close reiterating previous objections including:
The proposal would result in loss of privacy, overlooking and destabilisation of trees close to
the boundary
The unusual orientation means that the application property dominates this dwelling
The barge bards and gutters would be within 500mm of the common boundary and windows
880mm which is an invasion of privacy and may result in an incentive to want trees cut down

Agenda Page 179

Agenda Item 6

These trees provide screening
Destabilisation of trees due to rerouting of sewer drains and manhole
The loss of the trees would affect residential amenity as they shield the garden.
The recommendation remains as per the original report.

This page is intentionally left blank

